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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of McMillan Shakespeare Limited (Company or MSL) present this report on the consolidated entity, consisting of the Company and the 
entities that it controlled at the end of, and during, the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006.

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this Annual Report, the directors of the Company are Mr Ronald Pitcher (independent Chairman), Mr Anthony Podesta (Managing 
Director and Chief Executive Offi cer), Mr John Bennetts (non-executive director), Mr Ross Chessari (non-executive director) and Mr Graeme McMahon 
(independent director) (Directors).  Each director held offi ce as a Director throughout the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006. Details of the qualifi cations, 
experience and special responsibilities of the Directors at the date of this Annual Report are set out on page 4.

The Directors that are noted as independent Directors, as determined in accordance with the Company’s defi nition of independence, have been 
independent at all times throughout the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006.

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

The number of meetings of the board of Directors (Board) (including meetings of committees of the Board) and the number of meetings attended by 
each of the Directors during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 were as follows:

                                   Board Meetings                           Audit & Risk Management                        Nomination & Remuneration
                                  Committee Meetings                           Committee Meetings
Director  Eligible to Attend Attended Eligible to Attend Attended Eligible to Attend Attended

Mr R. Pitcher (Chairman) 12 10 4 2 2 2
Mr A. Podesta (Managing Director) 12 12 - - - -
Mr J. Bennetts 12 11 4 4 2 2
Mr R. Chessari 12 11 4 3 2 2
Mr G. McMahon 12 12 4 4 2 2

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its controlled entities during the course of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 were the provision of 
remuneration services to public and private organisations throughout Australia.

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no signifi cant changes in the nature of the activities of the Company and its controlled entities during the course 
of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 that are not otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report.

RESULTS

In the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006:

• net profi t after income tax (NPAT) was $11,305,273, compared to a result of $5,203,557 for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005; 
•  earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) was $17,628,207 compared to a result of $12,663,168 for the fi nancial year 

ended 30 June 2005; and
• earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) was $15,380,920, compared to a result of $9,031,931 for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005.

As shown in the Financial Report, basic earnings per share were 17.08 cents per share and earnings per share on a diluted basis were 16.71 cents 
per share for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, compared to a result of 7.95 and 7.75 cents per share respectively for the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2005.

The Company has adopted accounting policies to comply with the Australian Equivalents to the International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS) 
effective from 1 July 2005.  The comparative numbers for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005 have been adjusted to refl ect the transition to A-IFRS 
and provide a consistent approach.
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DIVIDENDS

Details of dividends declared and/or paid by the Company during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 are as follows:

 2006  2005
Dividends $ $

Final dividend for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005 of 2.4 cents (2005: nil) per ordinary share 
fully franked at the tax rate of 30%  1,580,638 -

Interim dividend for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 of 2.5 cents (2005: 1.5 cents) per 
ordinary share fully franked at the tax rate of 30% (2005: 30%) 1,659,846 987,899
 3,240,484 987,899

Subsequent to the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, the Directors declared a fi nal dividend of 7 cents per ordinary share (franked at the tax rate of 30%) 
to be paid on 18 October 2006 out of retained profi ts as at 30 June 2006, bringing the total dividend to be paid out of retained profi ts for the fi nancial 
year ended 30 June 2006 to 9.5 cents per ordinary share.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Financial Overview

The Directors are pleased that the consolidated entity has produced a NPAT result of $11,305,273 for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 
(2005: $5,203,557). The result included a benefi t of $1,100,669 from adopting tax consolidation. The growth in NPAT during the past fi nancial year 
of 117%, when compared to the result for the previous fi nancial year, refl ects a full 12 months of trading by Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited 
(RemServ) and strong organic growth by an organisation focused on driving sales, customer service excellence, innovation and enhanced customer 
product density. 

The performance of RemServ from 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006 has exceeded base earn-out fi nancial targets, resulting in an earn-out liability to the 
vendors of RemServ of approximately $1,185,000 (2005: $1,322,044), which is due within 30 days of the adoption of the Financial Report.

The consolidated entity’s fi nancial position remains strong having a consolidated net cash position of $3,250,798 (after the deduction of debt), placing 
it in a solid position to take advantage of any opportunities that may arise.

The restated fi nancial performance for the year ended 30 June 2005 under A-IFRS is detailed in the Financial Report. Of particular note is the cessation 
of amortisation of goodwill from 1 July 2005, which will now be subject to an annual impairment test. Under A-IFRS, however, the application of the 
‘Business Combinations’ Standard resulted in the recognition of an identifi able intangible asset of approximately $2,480,000, being the value of contracts 
acquired at the completion of the RemServ purchase, in the consolidated entity’s fi nancial position and a corresponding reduction in the carrying value 
of goodwill. The contracts value has been fully amortised at 30 June 2006.

Operational Overview

Responding to the needs of its customers, the consolidated entity developed and launched a number of new products during the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2006.  In particular, the consolidated entity launched a new property fringe benefi t program, ‘Fude Card’, which enables organisations to supply 
light meals and drinks to their employees at work.  To further enhance its portfolio of fl eet management products, the consolidated entity also introduced 
a repair and maintenance management service and launched the ‘miniRENT’ program.  

The Company (through its newly incorporated wholly owned subsidiary, Easilease Pty Limited (Easilease)) also acquired certain assets from Mountsville 
Pty Limited (trading as EasiFleet) (EasiFleet).  
 
During the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, RemServ was successful in renewing its outsourced salary packaging contract with the Queensland 
Government.  The contract has a three-year term with an option for the Queensland Government to renew the arrangement for a further period of up to 
two years.

Following 12 months of operational enhancement, and a focus on the continuous improvement of processes and systems, McMillan Shakespeare 
Australia Pty Limited (MSA) received accreditation in the International Customer Service Standard (ICSS) in February 2006.  ICSS accreditation is a key 
milestone for MSA as it strives for customer service excellence within the remuneration services and call centre sectors. 
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As part of its corporate social responsibility program, the consolidated entity and its employees continue to support a range of charitable organisations 
such as Redkite, WorldVision, Starlight Foundation and Ronald McDonald House.
 
Strategies & Prospects

For the 2007 fi nancial year, the consolidated entity will continue to focus on obtaining new business and maintaining key customer relationships. 
Leveraging from its customer base, technology platforms and buying power, the consolidated entity will also focus on increasing customer product 
density.  Further new services, particularly those related to the supply of fi nancial services, are also expected to be commercialised during the 2007 
fi nancial year. The renewal of RemServ’s outsourced salary packaging contract with the Queensland Government (see above), together with the progressive 
rollout of new products and services, will help to strengthen the consolidated entity’s market position.

Acquisitions, joint ventures or similar relationships that provide logical strategic, operational and leveraging opportunities will also continue to 
be explored.

STATE OF AFFAIRS

During the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005, the Company acquired RemServ.  The initial purchase consideration included cash consideration of 
$6,337,343 and the issue of 1,176,470 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company with a fair value of $1.55 per ordinary share (based on the share 
price at the time of acquisition). An additional amount of $1,322,004 was also payable (subject to a price adjustment mechanism for performance) for 
the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005, which was satisfi ed by the payment of $661,002 in cash and the issue of 351,597 fully paid ordinary shares 
in the Company at a price of $1.88 per share (being the weighted average price of fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Company over the 
period from 23 August 2005 and 19 September 2005).  The instalment payable with respect to the fi nancial performance of RemServ for the year ended 
30 June 2006 (based on the price adjustment mechanism for performance) is approximately $1,185,000, which is due within 30 days of the adoption 
of the Financial Report.  Under the acquisition agreement, the price adjustments are made via a combination of cash and the issue of fully paid ordinary 
shares in the Company.  The share component must comprise between 25% and 50% of the amount due and this determination is at the discretion of 
the Board.  With respect to the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, the Board has resolved that the share component will comprise 50% of the instalment 
due. Depending on the fi nancial performance of RemServ during the fi nancial year ending 30 June 2007, a fi nal instalment payment of between nil and 
$1,663,334 could also be payable for that fi nancial year.  The fi nancial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006 include an accrual of $946,675 as 
the estimated amount due with respect to the year ending 30 June 2007.  

On 1 February 2006, Easilease acquired certain assets from EasiFleet to operate a stand alone vehicle leasing business.

Other than the above matters, there were no signifi cant changes in the state of affairs of the Company and its controlled entities that occurred during the 
fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 that are not otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

In August 2006, the Company was granted an Australian Financial Services (AFS) licence by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission 
(ASIC).  The AFS licence permits the Company to deal in, and advise on, non-cash payment products and deal in insurance products.  Other than this 
matter, as at the date of this Annual Report, the Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen that has signifi cantly affected or may 
signifi cantly affect the operations of the Company and its controlled entities, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company and its 
controlled entities in the fi nancial years subsequent to 30 June 2006 that are not otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

Other than the information disclosed in this Annual Report, information as to the likely developments in the operations of the Company and its controlled 
entities and the expected results of those operations in subsequent years has not been included in this Annual Report because the Directors believe, on 
reasonable grounds, that to include such information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company and its controlled entities.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is Mr Paul McCluskey CA, B Bus, Grad Dip Bus Admin. Mr McCluskey is employed as the Chief Financial Offi cer of the Company 
and was appointed to the position of Company Secretary in May 2005. Mr McCluskey is a Chartered Accountant with 18 years experience in mergers and 
acquisitions, company secretarial services, statutory reporting, corporate governance practices, taxation planning and strategic planning.

Prior to the Chief Financial Offi cer’s employment with the Company, Mr McCluskey was a partner of William Buck at a time at which that audit fi rm 
undertook an audit of the Company. The Directors were satisfi ed at the time of the appointment that the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) were not contravened.
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DIRECTORS’ EXPERIENCE & SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Name: Ronald Pitcher FCA, FCPA, ACAA
Appointed: 4 February 2004
Position:  Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit & Risk Management Committee, Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Age:  67

Mr Pitcher is a chartered accountant with over 45 years experience in the accounting profession and the provision of business advisory services. 
Mr Pitcher is also the Chairman of Cellestis Limited (since 2001) and a director of National Can Industries Limited (since 1994), Capral Aluminium 
Limited (since 2001) and Reece Australia Limited (since 2003). Under ASX guidelines, Mr Pitcher is considered to be independent.

Name: Anthony Podesta BEd (Bus), MTMA, FTIA, MAICD
Appointed:  1 December 2003
Position:  Managing Director & Chief Executive Offi cer
Age:  50

Mr Podesta founded the McMillan Shakespeare business in 1989 and has been instrumental in the growth of its operations and the development of the 
outsourced salary packaging administration industry in Australia since that time. Mr Podesta is a registered taxation agent, a fellow of the Taxation Institute 
of Australia, a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and holds a public practice certifi cate with the Association of Taxation. Mr Podesta 
also held an executive position with Zurich Financial Services Australia Limited, providing strategic advice on workplace fi nancial services.

Name:  John Bennetts BEc, LLB
Appointed:  1 December 2003
Position:  Non-Executive Director, Member of the Audit & Risk Management Committee, Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Age:  43

Mr Bennetts is a principal and founder of the private equity group, Mooroolbark Investments Pty Limited. He is also a founder and director of a number 
of companies including Cellestis Limited (since 2001) and is a director of various companies within the IC Frith Group.  He is also a director of Asia 
Pac Consulting Pty Limited, which provides legal advice and corporate advisory services to a range of companies in Australia and Asia. Prior to the 
establishment of the Mooroolbark Group, he was Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary of Datacraft Limited. Before joining Datacraft Limited, he 
practiced as a solicitor.

Name:  Ross Chessari LLB, MTax
Appointed:  1 December 2003
Position: Non-Executive Director, Member of the Audit & Risk Management Committee, Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Age:  46

Mr Ross Chessari is a founder and director of the investment manager, SciVentures Investments Pty Limited. Prior to founding SciVentures, 
Mr Chessari was the managing director of ANZ Asset Management, and the general manager of ANZ Trustees. Mr Chessari is also a director of 
various companies within the IC Frith Group.

Name:  Graeme McMahon FCPA, FAIM, FRAI, FCIT
Appointed:  18 March 2004
Position:  Non-Executive Director, Member of the Audit & Risk Management Committee, Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Age:  66

Mr Graeme McMahon is a director of SSSR Holdings Pty Limited and Expo Hire (Aust.) Pty Limited. He is also a member of the Queensland Australian 
Football League Commission. Until recently, Mr McMahon served as a Member of Council at La Trobe University and, upon completion of his 5 year 
term, was appointed as an Adjunct Professor. Mr McMahon was the Chairman of the Essendon Football Club, a position that he held for 7 years and 
the Managing Director and Chief Executive Offi cer of Ansett Australia Group until 1996. He is a Fellow of the CPA of Australia, a Fellow of the Royal 
Aeronautical Society and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport. Under ASX guidelines, Mr McMahon is considered to be 
independent.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Overview

The consolidated entity’s remuneration policies and practices are designed to align staff and shareholder interests and attract and retain staff that are 
critical to its growth and success. The Board maintains a Nomination and Remuneration Committee whose objectives are to oversee the formulation and 
implementation of remuneration policy and make recommendations to the Board on remuneration policies and packages applicable to the Directors and 
executives. For further details on the composition and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, please refer to the Corporate 
Governance Statement.

Remuneration Structure – Executives

In setting its remuneration arrangements, reference is made to the current employment market in which the consolidated entity operates.

The components of remuneration for the executives comprise fi xed remuneration (including superannuation and benefi ts) and long-term equity-linked 
performance incentives.  No cash bonuses were paid to any executives with respect to the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviews the fi xed remuneration component of executives’ remuneration each year (or on promotion).  
There are no guaranteed base pay increases included in any executive’s employment agreement.  The fi xed remuneration component refl ects the duties, 
responsibilities and performance levels of the relevant executive and general market conditions. No element of the fi xed remuneration component is at 
risk. Neither the Chief Executive Offi cer nor the Company Secretary is remunerated for acting as an offi cer of the Company or any of its controlled entities. 
Some executives also receive benefi ts, such as motor vehicle lease payments and car parking benefi ts.

The Company also issues long-term equity-linked performance incentives to its executives, in the form of options, under the McMillan Shakespeare 
Limited Employee Option Plan (Plan). The Company has had the Plan in place since 2004 and as at 30 June 2006, there were 19 participants in the 
Plan (2005: 25). Under the Plan, 4 year options over unissued ordinary shares in the Company are issued for no consideration and are, other than as 
disclosed in this Annual Report, granted at prevailing market prices. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines the number of options to 
be granted on the basis of the position, duties and responsibilities of the relevant executive.  

Options granted under the Plan carry no dividend or voting rights. Once exercised, each option is converted into one fully paid ordinary share in the 
Company.  

The Company intends to revisit the long-term equity-linked performance incentive structure for executives during the fi nancial year ending 
30 June 2007.

Other than as disclosed in this Annual Report, all options were issued subject to the following exercise conditions:

•  50% of the options are exercisable in equal proportions on or after 15 September 2005, 15 September 2006 and 15 September 2007, but the 
entitlement to exercise is subject to continuity of employment;

•  25% of the options are exercisable in equal proportions on or after 15 September 2005, 15 September 2006 and 15 September 2007, but the 
entitlement to exercise is subject to continuity of employment and achievement of predetermined targets. For the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005, 
the targets centred on the achievement of EBITDA, operating revenue and client number hurdles (with achievement of less than the predetermined 
EBITDA, operating revenue and client number hurdles resulting in partial or no vesting entitlement).  For the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, the 
targets centred around the achievement of budgeted NPAT (with the achievement of less than the budgeted NPAT resulting in partial or no vesting 
entitlement); and

•  25% of the options are exercisable in equal proportions on or after 15 September 2005, 15 September 2006 and 15 September 2007, but the 
entitlement to exercise is subject to continuity of employment and satisfaction of individual performance indicators for the fi nancial years ending 
30 June 2005, 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007.

The Board believes that the use of options is still the most appropriate form of long-term equity-based performance incentive to reinforce alignment with 
shareholder interests. All options issued have an exercise price (or strike price) and only become valuable to the extent that the share price rises above 
the exercise price. Given that options are issued at the prevailing market price at the date of grant (other than as disclosed in this Annual Report), it is 
implied that increased shareholder wealth is required.

The linking of EBITDA, operating revenue and client numbers to the option entitlement for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005 and the linking of 
budgeted NPAT to the option entitlement for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 were chosen as executives can directly infl uence these outcomes. 
The individual performance hurdles were chosen as they provide a strong motivation for executives to increase the performance of the consolidated 
entity, thereby aligning executive performance with long term shareholder interests. The Chief Executive Offi cer, in consultation with the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, assesses the executive’s performance against the individually tailored performance indicators.
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Given the size of the consolidated entity, the Board believes that it is appropriate for 50% of the options granted not to be subject to performance hurdles 
in order to recruit and retain experienced executives critical to the consolidated entity’s success and provide those executives with a sense of ownership 
in the Company.

Remuneration Structure – Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive Directors are remunerated for their services from the maximum aggregate amount (currently $350,000 p.a.) approved by the 
shareholders of the Company for that purpose. The Board’s policy is to remunerate the Chairman and the non-executive Directors at market rates for 
comparable companies for the time and commitment involved in meeting their obligations. 

Neither the Chairman nor the other non-executive Directors received any performance related remuneration or options with respect to the fi nancial years 
ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006. There is no direct link between the remuneration of the Chairman or any other non-executive Director and 
the short term results of the consolidated entity because the primary focus of the Board is on the long term strategic direction and performance of the 
consolidated entity.

The Board sets the fees for the Chairman and the other non-executive Directors annually. The current base remuneration was last reviewed with effect 
from 1 July 2005. No additional fees are paid for participation in Board committees.

There are no termination payments made to the Chairman or the other non-executive Directors on their retirement from offi ce other than payments relating 
to their accrued superannuation entitlements comprised in their remuneration.

Cash Bonus and Option Details

No cash bonuses were paid to (or were forfeited by) any Director or executive during the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2005 or 30 June 2006.  
No options were granted to, exercised by or lapsed with respect to the Directors during the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2005 or 30 June 2006. 

The terms and conditions of each grant of options to executives affecting their remuneration in the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2006 and each relevant 
previous or future fi nancial year are as follows:                                                Exercise               Value per option            
Grant Date Expiry Date  Price                      at grant date1                            Date Exerciseable
 

15 March 2004 15 March 2008 $0.50 $0.083  One third after each of 15 September 2005, 
      15 September 2006 & 15 September 20072

14 December 2004 14 December 2008 $1.54 $0.254  One third after each of 15 September 2005, 
      15 September 2006 & 15 September 20072

15 August 2005 15 August 2009 $0.50 $1.150  One third after each of 15 September 2005, 
      15 September 2006 & 15 September 20073

1  Refl ects the value at grant date for options granted as part of remuneration calculated in accordance with AASB 2: Share-based Payment of Options.
2  All options were issued subject to the exercise conditions set out on page 5. The exercise price of the options granted was based on the prevailing price of fully paid ordinary shares in the 

Company as at the date of grant.
3  The exercise price of the options granted was based on the price of fully paid ordinary shares in the Company offered to the public under the prospectus dated 4 February 2004 and the 

supplementary prospectus dated 19 February 2004. 50,000 options vested on 15 September 2005. The remaining 100,000 options will vest subject to satisfaction of the exercise conditions 
set out on page 5.
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Details of the options granted, vested and exercised during the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006 with respect to the executives 
are as follows:
                                                                                                                 Options granted                                        Options vested                                            Ordinary shares   
           issued on exercise 
                                                                                                                  Options granted                                          Options vested                                       of options 
Executives1 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005    

      
Mr P. Lang2 - - 29,500 - 29,500 -
Mr P. Staunton2  - 120,000 33,500 - - -
Mr P. McCluskey3 150,000 - 50,000 - 50,000 -

1  The specifi ed executives are those that make, or participate in making, decisions that affect the whole or a substantial part of the business of the consolidated entity. The Directors believe that 
no other employees of the Company or its controlled entities are required to be identifi ed.

2  All options were issued subject to the exercise conditions set out on page 5. The exercise price of the options granted was based on the prevailing price of fully paid ordinary shares in the 
Company as at the date of grant.

3  The options were issued to any entity controlled by Mr McCluskey. The exercise price of the options granted was based on the price of fully paid ordinary shares in the Company offered to the 
public under the prospectus dated 4 February 2004 and the supplementary prospectus dated 19 February 2004. 50,000 options vested on 15 September 2005.  The remaining 100,000 options 
will vest subject to satisfaction of the exercise conditions set out on page 5.

  

The percentage of options granted to executives that have vested or were forfeited during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 is set out below: 
 
  Vested  Forfeited2     
Executives1 Year granted % %                          Financial years in which options may vest

    
Mr P. Lang3 2004 24.58 8.75    30 June 2006, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2008
Mr P. Staunton3 2005 27.92 5.42    30 June 2006, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2008
Mr P. McCluskey4 2006 33.33 -    30 June 2006, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2008

1  The specifi ed executives are those that make, or participate in making, decisions that affect the whole or a substantial part of the business of the consolidated entity. The Directors believe that 
no other employees of the Company or its controlled entities are required to be identifi ed.

2 The options were forfeited to the extent that the relevant vesting conditions were not met.
3  All options were issued subject to the exercise conditions set out on page 5. The exercise price of the options granted was based on the prevailing price of fully paid ordinary shares in the 

Company as at the date of grant.
4  The options were issued to any entity controlled by Mr McCluskey. The exercise price of the options granted was based on the price of fully paid ordinary shares in the Company offered to the 

public under the prospectus dated 4 February 2004 and the supplementary prospectus dated 19 February 2004. 50,000 vested on 15 September 2005.  The remaining 100,000 options will 
vest subject to satisfaction of the exercise conditions set out on page 5.

Details of the value of options granted, exercised and lapsed during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 with respect to the executives are 
as follows:
                  (i)                   (ii)          (iii) 
  Value at Value at Value at Aggregate of Minimum value Maximum value 
  grant date2 exercise date3 lapse date4             columns (i) to (iii) of option to vest of option to vest5

Executive1   $ $ $ $ $ $

Mr P. Lang  - 68,145 12,075 80,220 - 1,422
Mr P. Staunton  - - 7,475 7,475 - 5,691
Mr P. McCluskey6  172,500 120,000 - 292,500 - 44,577

1  The specifi ed executives are those that make, or participate in making, decisions that affect the whole or a substantial part of the business of the consolidated entity. The Directors believe that 
no other employees of the Company or its controlled entities are required to be identifi ed.

2  Refl ects the value at grant date for options granted as part of remuneration during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 calculated in accordance with AASB 2: Share-based Payment 
of Options.

3 Refl ects the value at exercise date for options that were granted as part of remuneration and were exercised during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006. 
4 Refl ects the value at lapse date for options that were granted as part of remuneration and lapsed during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006. 
5 All conditional entitlements in existence at 30 June 2006 will potentially vest in September 2006 and September 2007 on the basis set out in the Remuneration Report.
6 The options were issued to any entity controlled by Mr McCluskey.
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Remuneration Details

Details of the nature and amount of each element of remuneration of each Director and executive of the Company received during the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2006 are as follows:
                                                                           Share based 
                                                                          Short-term benefi ts1                       Post-employment benefi ts  payment2   
       Percentage of
 Cash salary  Other  Termination  Total Remuneration
 and fees3 Benefi ts4 Superannuation Benefi ts5 Options Remuneration as options
Name $ $ $ $ $ $ %

Directors       
Mr R. Pitcher (Chairman) 75,000 - 6,750 - - 81,750 -
Mr A. Podesta6 (CEO, MSL) - - - - - - -
Mr J. Bennetts 40,000 - 3,600 - - 43,600 -
Mr R. Chessari 40,000 - 3,600 - - 43,600 -
Mr G. McMahon 50,000 - 4,500 - - 54,500 -

Executives7        
Mr P. Lang8 (Head of Operations, MSL) - - - - 2,729 2,729 100
Mr P. Staunton9 (CEO, RemServ) - - - - 12,329 12,329 100
Mr P. McCluskey10 (CFO, MSL) - - - - 127,923 127,923 100

Details of the nature and amount of each element of remuneration of each Director and executive of the Company and its controlled entities received 
during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 are as follows:

                                                                           Share based 
                                                                         Short-term benefi ts1                       Post-employment benefi ts  payment2   
       Percentage of
 Cash salary  Other  Termination  Total Remuneration
 and fees3 Benefi ts4 Superannuation Benefi ts5 Options Remuneration as options
Name $ $ $ $ $ $ %

Directors       
Mr R. Pitcher (Chairman) 75,000 - 6,750 - - 81,750 -
Mr A. Podesta6 (CEO, MSL) 275,229 5,439 24,771 - - 305,171 -
Mr J. Bennetts 40,000 - 3,600 - - 43,600 -
Mr R. Chessari 40,000 - 3,600 - - 43,600 -
Mr G. McMahon 50,000 - 4,500 - - 54,500 -
       
Executives7        
Mr P. Lang8 (Head of Operations, MSL) 103,934 61,204 14,862 - 2,729 182,729 1
Mr P. Staunton9 (CEO, RemServ) 171,440 24,010 - - 12,329 207,779 6
Mr P. McCluskey10 (CFO, MSL) 180,089 - 29,911 - 127,923 337,923 38

Details of the nature and amount of each element of remuneration of each Director and executive of the Company and its controlled entities received 
during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005 are as follows:

                                                                           Share based 
                                                                         Short-term benefi ts1                       Post-employment benefi ts  payment2   
       Percentage of
 Cash salary  Other  Termination  Total Remuneration
 and fees3 Benefi ts4 Superannuation Benefi ts5 Options Remuneration as options
Name $ $ $ $ $ $ %

Directors       
Mr R. Pitcher (Chairman) 75,000 - 6,750 - - 81,750 -
Mr A. Podesta6 (CEO, MSL) 271,049 6,411 24,711 - - 302,171 -
Mr J. Bennetts - - - - - - -
Mr R. Chessari - - - - - - -
Mr G. McMahon 50,000 - 4,500 - - 54,500 -
       
Executives7 – Current       
Mr P. Lang8 (Head of Operations, MSL) 106,901 2,750 13,306 - 4,464 127,421 3.5
Mr P. Staunton9 (CEO, RemServ) 107,577  4,127 - - 12,460 124,164 10
Mr P. McCluskey10 (CFO, MSL) 22,894 - 1,337 - - 24,231 -
       
Executive7 – Former       
Mr G. Tsiamis11 (CFO, MSL) 149,259 - 13,433 10,014 - 172,706 -
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1 No cash bonuses were paid to any Director or executive during the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006. 

2  The equity value comprises the value of options issued. No shares were issued to any Director (and no options were granted to any Director) during the fi nancial years 
ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006. The value of options issued to executives (as disclosed above) are the assessed fair values at the date that the options were 
granted to the executives, allocated equally over the period from grant date to vesting date. Fair values at grant date are determined using a binomial option pricing model 
that takes into account the exercise price, the expected term of the option, the share price at grant date, the expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected 
dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. 

   The model inputs for options granted to executives during the year ended 30 June 2005 included:
 • options are granted for no consideration;
 • exercise price: $1.54;
 • grant date: 14 December 2004;
 • expected life: 3.5 years;
 • share price at grant date: $1.54;
 • expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: 20%;
 • expected dividend yield: 3%; and
 • risk-free interest rate: 5.25%.

 The model inputs for options granted to executives during the year ended 30 June 2006 included:
 • options are granted for no consideration;
 • exercise price: $0.50;
 • grant date: 15 August 2005;
 • expected life: 3.5 years;
 • share price at grant date: $1.65;
 • expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: 20%;
 • expected dividend yield: 3%; and
 • risk-free interest rate: 5.25%.

3  Remuneration for the non-executive Directors refl ects director’s fees. Remuneration for the executives refl ects total remuneration package consisting of cash salary, 
annual leave and, where applicable, long service leave.

4 Other benefi ts refl ect motor vehicle lease payments and/or car parking benefi ts.

5  Termination benefi ts include all annual leave and, where applicable, long service leave entitlements paid out upon cessation of service or employment with the Company 
or its controlled entities.

6  For each of the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006, remuneration relates to the entire fi nancial year. The employment agreement between Mr Podesta 
and the Company is for a 3 year fi xed term commencing on 10 March 2004 but provides for termination of employment by the Company with or without cause on the 
provision of 3 months’ written notice (or payment in lieu). Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 was $300,000, to be 
reviewed on an annual basis by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

 
7  The specifi ed executives are those that make, or participate in making, decisions that affect the whole or a substantial part of the business of the consolidated entity. The 

Directors believe that no other employees of the Company or its controlled entities are required to be identifi ed.

8  For each of the fi nancial years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006, remuneration relates to the entire fi nancial year. The employment agreement between Mr Lang 
and the Company is for a 3 year fi xed term commencing on 10 March 2004 but provides for termination of employment by the Company with or without cause on the 
provision of 3 months’ written notice (or payment in lieu). Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 was $180,000, to be 
reviewed on an annual basis by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

9  For the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005, remuneration relates to the period from 9 November 2004 to 30 June 2005. For the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, 
remuneration relates to the entire fi nancial year. The employment agreement between Mr Staunton and RemServ is for a 3 year fi xed term commencing 9 November 2004 
but provides for termination of employment by RemServ with or without cause on the provision of 3 months’ written notice (or payment in lieu). Base salary, inclusive of 
superannuation, for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 was $235,000, to be reviewed on an annual basis by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. If the 
executive’s position becomes redundant at any time during the term, the executive is entitled to an additional 3 months’ written notice (or payment in lieu).

10  For the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005, remuneration relates to the period from 16 May 2005 to 30 June 2005. For the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, 
remuneration relates to the entire fi nancial year. The employment agreement between Mr McCluskey and the Company commenced on 16 May 2005 and is ongoing and 
provides for termination of employment by the Company with or without cause on the provision of 3 months’ written notice (or payment in lieu). Base salary, inclusive 
of superannuation, for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 was $210,000, to be reviewed on an annual basis by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. If the 
executive’s position becomes redundant at any time during the term, the executive is entitled to an additional 3 months’ written notice (or payment in lieu).

11  For the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005, remuneration relates to the period from 1 July 2004 to 20 May 2005. Options that were disclosed as remuneration for the 
period ended 30 June 2004 were forfeited on resignation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At the date of this Annual Report, the relevant interest of each Director in the ordinary shares issued by the Company and its controlled entities, as 
notifi ed by the Directors to the Australian Stock Exchange Limited (ASX) in accordance with section 205G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), is 
as follows:

Director              Ordinary shares1

Mr R. Pitcher (Chairman)       105,100
Mr A. Podesta (Managing Director)      15,101,819
Mr J. Bennetts       5,545,546
Mr R. Chessari       6,425,063
Mr G. McMahon       100,000

1 Some ordinary shares may be held by entities controlled by the relevant Director.

At the date of this Annual Report, no Director holds a relevant interest in any options granted by the Company or its controlled entities.

No Director has, during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, become entitled to receive any benefi t (other than a benefi t included in the aggregate 
amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by the Directors shown in the Remuneration Report or the fi xed salary of a full time employee of 
the Company) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a controlled entity with the Director or an entity in which the Director has a substantial 
fi nancial interest or a fi rm in which the Director is a member. Subsequent to the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, however, Mr Graeme McMahon 
became entitled to receive an additional fee in the amount of $25,000, payable for services provided with respect to the renewal of RemServ’s outsourced 
salary packaging contract with the Queensland Government.

OPTIONS GRANTED

During or since the end of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, the Company has granted no options to the Directors.

During or since the end of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, the Company has granted options to executives as part of their remuneration 
as follows:

Executive1  Number granted2 Date of granted Exercise price3 Expiry date
    
Mr P. Lang - - - -
Mr P. Staunton - - - -
Mr P. McCluskey4 150,000 15 August 2005 $0.50 15 August 2009

1  The specifi ed executives are those that make, or participate in making, decisions that affect the whole or a substantial part of the business of the consolidated entity. The Directors believe that 
no other employees of the Company or its controlled entities are required to be identifi ed.

2  In accordance with ASIC Class Order 03/184, none of the options may be exercised by an option holder unless either a current prospectus is available to the option holder at the time of exercise 
or the Company’s ordinary shares have been quoted on the ASX throughout the 12 month period immediately preceding the exercise date of the options without suspension for more than a total 
of 2 trading days during that period.

3  The exercise price of the options granted was based on the price of fully paid ordinary shares in the Company offered to the public under the prospectus dated 4 February 2004 and the 
supplementary prospectus dated 19 February 2004. 50,000 options vested on 15 September 2005. The remaining 100,000 options will vest subject to satisfaction of the exercise conditions 
set out in the Remuneration Report.

4 The options were issued to any entity controlled by Mr McCluskey.

No person holding an option has or had, by virtue of the option, a right to participate in a share issue of any other corporation.

UNISSUED SHARES

At the date of this Annual Report, unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option are:

 Number of unissued
Option plan ordinary shares Exercise price Expiry date

Employee Option Plan 747,717 $0.50 15 March 2008
Employee Option Plan 113,500 $1.54 14 December 2008
Employee Option Plan 70,938 $1.59 21 April 2009
Employee Option Plan 100,000 $0.50 15 August 2009

During or since the end of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, the Company has issued 258,519 fully paid ordinary shares as a result of the exercise 
of options.
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The Directors believe that the Company and its controlled entities have adequate systems in place for the management of relevant environmental 
requirements and are not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the Company and its controlled entities.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

Under the Company’s Constitution, the Company indemnifi es the Directors and offi cers of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries against every 
liability and all legal costs in connection with proceedings incurred by them in their respective capacities unless:

• the liability is owed to the Company or to a related body corporate;
• the liability did not arise out of conduct in good faith;
• the liability is for a pecuniary penalty order or a compensation order under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth); and
•  in the case of legal costs, the costs are incurred in relation to a liability excluded above, proceedings in which the person is found guilty, 

proceedings by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission or a liquidator where grounds for a court order are established (but 
excluding costs relating to investigations before commencement of proceedings) or proceedings for relief to the person in which the court 
denies relief.

The Company has also entered into a Deed of Access, Indemnity and Insurance with each Director (Deed), which protects individuals acting as 
Directors during their term of offi ce and after their resignation. Under the Deed, the Company also indemnifi es each Director to the full extent permitted 
by law.

The Company has a Directors & Offi cers Liability Insurance policy in place for all current and former directors and offi cers of the Company and its 
controlled entities. The Directors have not included the details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid with respect to 
the above insurance policy, as such disclosure is not permitted under the terms of the policy.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor of the Company, William Buck and its related practices, for non-audit services provided, during the 
fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, is disclosed in Note 3 to the Financial Statements.

The Company’s policy is that the external auditor is not to provide non-audit services unless the Audit and Risk Management Committee have approved 
that work in advance, as appropriate.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed a summary of non-audit services provided during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 by 
William Buck and its related practices and has confi rmed that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence 
for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). This has been formally advised to the Board. Consequently, the Directors are satisfi ed that the 
provision of non-audit services, during the year, by the auditor and its related practices did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration, as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), is set out on page 49 of this 
Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

A Corporate Governance Statement is set out on pages 12 to 14 of this Annual Report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Ronald Pitcher   Anthony Podesta
Chairman   Managing Director

11 September 2006
Melbourne, Australia
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INTRODUCTION

This statement outlines the corporate governance policies and practices formally adopted by the Company. These policies and practices are in accordance 
with the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s ‘Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations’ (ASX Guidelines), 
unless otherwise stated. A copy of each policy referred to in this Corporate Governance Statement may be obtained from the Company upon request.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The role of the Board is to provide strategic guidance for the consolidated entity and effective oversight of management. The Board operates in accordance 
with the Company’s Constitution and Board Charter, which describes the Board’s composition, functions and responsibilities and designates authority 
reserved to the Board and that delegated to management. 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Directors are as follows:

Name Position Appointment

Mr R. Pitcher Independent Chairman 4 February 2004
Mr A. Podesta Managing Director and Chief Executive Offi cer 1 December 2003
Mr J. Bennetts Non-Executive Director 1 December 2003
Mr R. Chessari Non-Executive Director 1 December 2003
Mr G. McMahon Independent Director 18 March 2004

Each Director is a senior executive with skills and experience necessary for the proper supervision and leadership of the Company. As a team, the Board 
brings together a broad range of qualifi cations and experience in remuneration services, fi nance, accounting, law, sales and marketing and public 
company affairs. Details of the Directors, their experience and their special responsibilities with respect to the Company are set out in the Directors’ 
Report.

The criteria for assessing the independence of a Director are set out in McMillan Shakespeare’s Policy on the Assessment of Independence of a Director. 
The Chairman determines the relevant materiality thresholds on a case by case basis.

The ASX Guidelines recommend that a listed company should have a majority of directors who are independent. The Board, as currently composed, 
does not comply with this recommendation. Mr Chessari and Mr Bennetts currently hold, through their controlled entities, approximately 18% of the 
shares in the Company. These Directors have participated in the growth and development of McMillan Shakespeare and have a signifi cant interest in the 
Company’s continued success. Given their history, skills and the size of their investment in the Company, the Board believes that it is appropriate for 
each of these Directors to be appointed to the Board.

The Company believes that the Board, as currently composed, has the necessary skills and motivation to ensure that it continues to perform strongly, 
notwithstanding that its overall composition does not specifi cally meet the ASX Guidelines.

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets monthly (and at other times as required) to evaluate, control, review and implement the Company’s operations and objectives. The 
Directors receive monthly reports from the Chief Executive Offi cer, the Chief Financial Offi cer and operational managers. A Director, subject to prior 
consultation with the Chairman, may seek independent professional advice (including legal advice) at the Company’s expense.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Board has delegated the responsibility for evaluating the performance of the Board and the Directors to the Chairman. The performance evaluation 
includes the examination of the performance of the Board and the Directors as against the Board Charter.  The Chairman undertook the last performance 
appraisal of the Board during the course of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006. 

The Board has delegated the responsibility for evaluating the performance of executive management to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which is structured so that the committee is chaired by an independent director 
and consists of at least three members all of whom are non-executive directors. Details of names and relevant qualifi cations of the Directors appointed to 
the committee, the number of meetings of the committee held during the year ended 30 June 2006 and the attendance record for each relevant member 
can be found on page 1 of the Directors’ Report.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is empowered to investigate any matter brought to its attention and has direct access to any employee or 
any independent experts and advisers as it considers appropriate in order to ensure that its responsibilities can be carried out effectively. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee has a documented charter (including guidelines for the nomination of Directors) approved by the Board.

The ASX Guidelines recommend that the majority of members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee should be independent. At present, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is comprised of 4 members, 2 of whom are not independent. Mr Chessari and Mr Bennetts have participated 
in the growth and development of McMillan Shakespeare and have a signifi cant interest in the Company’s continued success. Given their management 
experience, skills and the size of their investment in the Company, the Board believes that it is appropriate for each of these Directors to be appointed to 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Given the nature and size of the Company’s operations, the Board has decided against the establishment of a separate nomination committee at 
this time. 

AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is structured so that the committee is chaired by an independent director 
and consists of at least three members, all of whom are non-executive directors. Details of names and relevant qualifi cations of the Directors appointed to 
the committee, the number of meetings of the committee held during the year ended 30 June 2006 and the attendance record for each relevant member 
can be found in the Directors’ Report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is empowered to investigate any matter brought to its attention and has direct access to any employee, 
the independent auditors or any other independent experts and advisers as it considers appropriate in order to ensure that its responsibilities can be 
performed effectively. The Audit and Risk Management Committee has a documented charter approved by the Board.

The ASX Guidelines recommend that the majority of members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee should be independent and that a person 
who is not the Chairman of the Board should chair the committee. The Audit and Risk Management Committee, as currently composed, does not comply 
with these recommendations.

At present, the Audit and Risk Management Committee is comprised of 4 members, only 2 of whom are independent. Mr Chessari and Mr Bennetts have 
participated in the growth and development of McMillan Shakespeare and have a signifi cant interest in the Company’s continued success.  Given their 
management experience, skills and the size of their investment in the Company, the Board believes that it is appropriate for each of these Directors to be 
appointed to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

In addition, the Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by Mr Pitcher who, while independent, is also the chairman of the Board. Mr Pitcher is 
a chartered accountant with over 45 years experience in the accounting profession and the provision of business advisory services. Given the Company’s 
highly specialised activities and Mr Pitcher’s extensive accounting and business experience, the Board believes that Mr Pitcher is the most appropriate 
person to chair the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Given the nature and size of the Company’s operations, the Board has decided against the establishment of a separate risk management committee at 
this time.  

FINANCIAL REPORTING & RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the integrity of the Company’s fi nancial reporting. The Directors have implemented internal control processes 
for identifying, evaluating and managing signifi cant fi nancial, operational and compliance risks to the achievement of the Company’s objectives.
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The Directors have received and considered written representations from the Chief Executive Offi cer and the Chief Financial Offi cer in accordance with 
the ASX Guidelines. The written representations confi rmed that:

•  the fi nancial reports are complete and present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the fi nancial condition and operating results of the 
Company and its controlled entities and are in accordance with all relevant accounting standards; and

•  the above statement is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control that implements the policies adopted 
by the Board and that compliance and control is operating effi ciently and effectively in all material respects.

The Company’s external auditor has been invited to attend the Annual General Meeting and be available to answer questions from the members of the 
Company about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the Independent Audit Report.

The Company has adopted procedures for the selection and appointment of the external auditor, and the rotation of external audit engagement partners, 
in line with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

The Company has adopted a formal Risk Management Policy, which identifi es the material risks affecting the Company and the manner in which each 
of those risks will be managed. 

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s remuneration policy is structured to ensure that the remuneration package properly refl ects the person’s duties and responsibilities and 
level of performance and that the remuneration is competitive in attracting, retaining and motivating people of the highest quality.

Non-executive Directors are remunerated by way of fees and do not participate in profi t or incentive schemes and do not generally receive options, bonus 
payments or retirement benefi ts other than statutory superannuation.

Executive remuneration generally comprises the following elements:

• fi xed remuneration, including superannuation and benefi ts, which is set at a level that refl ects the marketplace for each position; and
•  long-term equity-linked performance incentives, in the form of share options, which incorporates exercise restrictions based on continuity of 

employment and the achievement of certain individual and fi nancial performance hurdles.

Further details of remuneration on the Company’s remuneration policies and practices in relation to the Directors and key executives (including the nature 
and amount of remuneration paid to the Directors and the highest paid executives) can be found in the Directors’ Report under the heading ‘Remuneration 
Report’.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND THE MARKET

The Company’s commitment to communicating with its shareholders is embodied in its Continuous Disclosure Policy, which contains policies and 
procedures designed to ensure accountability at the senior management level for compliance with disclosure obligations. 

In addition to the distribution of the Annual Report, information is communicated to shareholders via the announcements section of McMillan 
Shakespeare’s website, www.mcms.com.au.

Given the size of the Company and the number of shareholders, the Board does not believe that it is appropriate for the Company to adopt a formal 
Communications Policy at this time.

ETHICS AND CODES OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted a Director Code of Conduct that applies to the directors of the Company. The Director Code of Conduct refl ects the commitment 
of the Company to ethical standards and practices. This Code deals with issues specifi c to the Directors. 

The Company has also adopted an Employee Code of Conduct that applies to all employees of the Company, which acknowledges the need for, and 
continued maintenance of, the highest standard of ethics and seeks to ensure that employees act honestly, transparently, diligently and with integrity. 

The Company has also implemented a policy on securities trading that binds all of the consolidated entity’s offi cers and employees. In addition to 
ensuring that all offi cers and employees are aware of the legal restrictions on trading in the Company’s securities while in possession of unpublished 
price-sensitive information, the policy also restricts the times when offi cers and employees may deal in the Company’s securities. 
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

                                             Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
    Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $
 

Revenue from continuing operations 2 48,720,531 35,837,924 11,656,160 2,502,949
Employee and director benefi ts expense  (21,199,679) (16,152,044) (412,650) (229,142) 
Depreciation, amortisation and write down expenses 3 (2,247,287) (3,631,237) - (141,105) 
Technology and communication expenses  (3,120,057) (2,456,031) - - 
Property and corporate expenses  (1,658,502) (1,530,824) (104,395) (193,286) 
Other expenses   (4,624,842) (2,769,905) (181,229) (30,831) 
Finance costs  3 (857,366) (1,121,517) (849,461) (1,112,940) 

Profi t before income tax expense  15,012,798 8,176,366 10,108,425 795,645 
Income tax (expense)/revenue  4 (3,707,525) (2,972,809) 410,489 494,672 

Profi t attributable to members of the parent entity  11,305,273 5,203,557 10,518,914 1,290,317 

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 5 17.08 7.95  
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 5 16.71 7.75   
       

The accompanying notes form part of these fi nancial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

                                             Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
    Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

Current Assets      
Cash and cash equivalents  7 6,584,388 8,854,266 296,583 - 
Trade and other receivables  8 6,756,959 3,558,231 229,219 116,720 
Current tax receivable   - - 522,476 -
Other assets  9 - 128,019 - 128,019 
Total Current Assets   13,341,347 12,540,516 1,048,278 244,739 

Non-current assets      
Other fi nancial assets  10 - - 44,115,071 41,982,915 
Plant and equipment  12 2,467,360 2,123,716 - - 
Deferred tax assets  13 1,265,676 3,223,990 232,105 1,199,054 
Intangible assets  14 33,210,001 32,019,783 - - 
Other assets  9 - 119,955 - 119,955 
Total Non-Current Assets   36,943,037 37,487,444 44,347,176 43,301,924 

Total Assets   50,284,384 50,027,960 45,395,454 43,546,663 

Current Liabilities       
Trade and other payables  15 9,732,154 5,991,733 14,057,434 8,938,101 
Borrowings  16 3,333,590 2,066,935 3,250,000 2,004,138 
Current tax liability  17 1,442,461 2,696,350 - - 
Provisions  18 1,308,703 940,198 - - 
Other Liabilities  19 631,048 800,778 - - 
Total Current liabilities   16,447,956 12,495,994 17,307,434 10,942,239 

Non-Current Liabilities       
Borrowings  16 - 12,817,795 - 12,750,000 
Provisions  18 172,314 70,012 - - 
Total Non-Current Liabilities   172,314 12,887,807 - 12,750,000 

Total Liabilities   16,620,270 25,383,801 17,307,434 23,692,239 

Net Assets   33,664,114 24,644,159 28,088,020 19,854,424 

Equity       
Share capital  20 20,688,848 19,833,603 20,688,848 19,833,603 
Reserves   21 166,634 66,713 166,634 66,713 
Distributable reserve   12,808,632 4,743,843 7,232,538 (45,892) 

Total Equity   33,664,114 24,644,159 28,088,020 19,854,424 

The accompanying notes form part of these fi nancial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

     Ordinary  Distributable  Option
    Note Shares Reserve Reserve Total
     $ $ $ $

2006 - Economic Entity
Equity as at beginning of year   19,833,603 4,743,843 66,713 24,644,159 

Changes      
Profi t attributable to members of the parent entity  - 11,305,273 - 11,305,273 
Issue of shares  20(a) 855,245 - - 855,245 
Transfer to share capital   - - (73,359) (73,359) 
Option expense   - - 173,280 173,280 

Sub Total   855,245 11,305,273 99,921 12,260,439 
Dividends paid   - (3,240,484) - (3,240,484) 

Equity as at 30 June 2006   20,688,848 12,808,632 166,634 33,664,114 

2005 - Economic Entity  
Equity as at beginning of year   18,010,074 528,185 11,266 18,549,525 

Changes      
Profi t attributable to members of the parent entity  - 5,203,557 - 5,203,557 
Issue of shares  20(a) 1,823,529 - - 1,823,529 
Option expense   - - 55,447 55,447 

Sub Total   1,823,529 5,203,557 55,447 7,082,533 
Dividends paid   - (987,899) - (987,899) 

Equity as at 30 June 2005   19,833,603 4,743,843 66,713 24,644,159 

The accompanying notes form part of these fi nancial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

     Ordinary  Distributable  Option
    Note Shares Reserve Reserve Total
     $ $ $ $

2006 - Parent Entity
 Equity as at beginning of year   19,833,603 (45,892) 66,713 19,854,424 

Changes     
Profi t attributable to members of the parent entity  - 10,518,914 - 10,518,914 
Issue of shares   855,245 - - 855,245 
Transfer to share capital   - - (73,359) (73,359) 
Option expense   - - 173,280 173,280 

Sub Total   855,245 10,518,914 99,921 11,474,080 
Dividends paid    - (3,240,484) - (3,240,484) 

Equity as at 30 June 2006   20,688,848 7,232,538 166,634 28,088,020 

2005 -  Parent Entity
Equity as at beginning of year   18,010,074 (348,310) 11,266 17,673,030 

Changes     
Profi t attributable to members of the parent entity  - 1,290,317 - 1,290,317 
Issue of shares   1,823,529 - - 1,823,529 
Option expense   - - 55,447 55,447 

Sub Total   1,823,529 1,290,317 55,447 3,169,293 
Dividends paid    - (987,899) - (987,899) 

Equity as at 30 June 2005   19,833,603 (45,892) 66,713 19,854,424 

The accompanying notes form part of these fi nancial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

                                                                                              Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
    Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

Cashfl ows from operating activities      
 Cash receipts from customers   57,356,006 40,866,428 120,481 - 
Cash payments to suppliers & employees  (38,112,112) (27,128,373) - (362,610) 
Interest received   489,244 265,952 6,160 2,949 
Dividends received   - - 11,650,000 2,500,000 
Interest paid   (1,000,867) (1,112,940) (993,423) (1,112,940) 
Income taxes refunded/(paid)   (4,270,997) (2,411,379) 380,645 - 

Net cash from operating activities 23 14,461,274 10,479,688 11,163,863 1,027,399 

Cash fl ows from investing activities      
 Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment  - 12,377 - - 
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 11(b) (696,553) (5,847,881) (661,102) (6,337,343) 
Acquisition of plant and equipment  (1,428,987) (1,132,441) - - 

Net cash used by investing activities  (2,125,540) (6,967,945) (661,102) (6,337,343) 

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities      
 Equity contribution   120,886 - 120,886 - 
Capitalised borrowing costs   - (44,303) - (44,303) 
Proceeds from borrowings   - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 
Repayment of borrowings   (11,500,000) (2,000,000) (11,500,000) (2,000,000) 
Dividends paid by parent entity   (3,240,484) (987,899) (3,240,484) (987,899) 
Proceeds from controlled entities  - - 4,417,558 4,376,933 

Net cash provided by/(used in) fi nancing activities  (14,619,598) (32,202) (10,202,040) 4,344,731 

Net cash increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,283,864) 3,479,541 300,721 (965,213) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  8,850,128 5,370,587 (4,138) 961,075 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7 6,566,264 8,850,128 296,583 (4,138) 

The accompanying notes form part of these fi nancial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

NOTE 1:  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)  General information

Overview
The Financial Report was authorised for issue on 11 September 2006 by the Board.

The Financial Report is a general purpose fi nancial report prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian 
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS), Urgent Issues Group Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). Compliance with A-IFRS ensures that the fi nancial report complies with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

First time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
In accordance with the requirements of AASB 1: First time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards, 
adjustments to the parent entity and economic entity fi nancial statements resulting from the introduction of A-IFRS have been applied retrospectively 
to 2005 comparative fi gures excluding cases where optional exemptions available under AASB 1 have been applied (see below). These fi nancial 
statements are the fi rst fi nancial statements of the Company to be prepared in accordance with A-IFRS.

Transitional Exemptions on First Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition from previous Australian GAAP to A-IFRS have been included in note 22 to this 
Financial Report. 

Financial Instruments
The economic entity has taken the exemption available under AASB 1 to apply AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure and 
AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement only from 1 July 2005. The economic entity has applied previous Australian 
Accounting Standards to comparative information on fi nancial instruments within the scope of AASB 132 and AASB 139.

Under previous Australian Accounting Standards, unamortised borrowing costs were included in other assets.  The nature of the main adjustments 
to make this information comply with AASB 139 is that unamortised borrowing costs would be reclassifi ed from other assets to a deduction from 
borrowings in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2005.

Business Combinations
The economic entity has elected not to apply AASB 3: Business Combinations to any business combinations with an agreement date before the date 
of transition to A-IFRS (1 July 2004). All business combinations that occurred before the date of transition have been classifi ed under previous 
Australian accounting standards. On transition to A-IFRS, adjustments have been made to the recognised assets and liabilities, arising from the 
business combinations as previously classifi ed, to comply with the requirements of A-IFRS.

Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with A-IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management 
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the economic entity’s accounting policies. 

The accounting policies detailed in note 1 provide details of these estimates, judgments and assumptions.

Signifi cant Accounting Policies
The Financial Report covers the Company and its controlled entities as an economic entity. The Company is a listed public company, incorporated 
and domiciled in Australia. 

The following signifi cant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the Financial Report:

(b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated fi nancial statements are prepared by combining the fi nancial statements of all the entities that comprise the economic entity, 
being the Company (the parent company) and its subsidiaries as defi ned in AASB 127: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. Consistent 
accounting polices are employed in the preparation and presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements. On acquisition, the assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair 
values of the identifi able net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If, after reassessment, the fair values of the identifi able net assets acquired 
exceeds the cost of acquisition, the difference is credited to profi t and loss in the period of acquisition. 
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The consolidated fi nancial statements include the information and results of each subsidiary from the date on which the Company obtains control 
and until such time as the Company ceases to control such entity. 

In preparing the consolidated fi nancial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions and unrealised profi ts arising within the economic 
entity are eliminated in full. Details of the controlled entities are contained in note 11. 

(c)  Income tax

Current tax 
Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profi t for the period. It is 
calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date. Current tax for current and prior periods 
is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable). 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the fi nancial statements and the corresponding tax base of those items. 

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that suffi cient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can 
be utilised. However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial 
recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither taxable income nor accounting profi t. 
Furthermore, a deferred tax liability is not recognised in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from goodwill. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the economic entity is 
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with these investments and interest are only recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that there will be suffi cient taxable profi ts against which to utilise the benefi ts of the temporary differences and they are expected 
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the assets and liability giving rise to 
them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date. The measurement 
of deferred tax liabilities and assets refl ects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the economic entity expects, at the 
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company/economic entity 
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Current and deferred tax for the period 
Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or debited directly 
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, or where it arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, 
in which case it is taken into account in the determination of goodwill or excess. 

Tax consolidation 
The Company and all its wholly owned Australian resident entities are members of a tax consolidated group under Australian taxation law. The 
Company is the head entity in the tax consolidated group. 

Entities within the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding arrangement and a tax sharing agreement with the head entity. Under the 
terms of the tax funding arrangement, the Company and each of the entities in the tax consolidated group has agreed to pay a tax equivalent payment 
to or from the head entity, based on the current tax liability or current tax asset of the entity. 

During the year the economic entity formed a tax consolidated group under Australian taxation law. The economic entity recognised a tax benefi t 
at the time of forming a tax consolidated group which was recorded as a credit (reduction) to the consolidated income tax expense for the amount 
of $1,100,669.  

(d)  Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the item.
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Depreciation is provided on plant and equipment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as to write off the net cost over its expected 
useful life to its estimated residual value.  The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual 
reporting period. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate Depreciation basis

Plant and equipment 20 - 40% Straight Line

(e)  Leases

Finance and Operating Leases
Leases of fi xed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefi ts incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership, are 
transferred to the economic entity are classifi ed as fi nance leases. Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset and a liability equal to the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over 
their estimated useful lives where it is likely that the economic entity will obtain ownership of the asset, or over the term of the lease. Lease payments 
are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period. 

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefi ts remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods 
in which they are incurred.

Lease Incentives
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability as income in advance. The 
aggregate benefi ts of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis.

(f) Intangible assets

Goodwill 
Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired, 
is recognised as an asset and not amortised, but tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the goodwill may be 
impaired. Any impairment is recognised immediately in profi t or loss and is not subsequently reversed. Refer also note (g). 

Capitalised Software Development Costs
Capitalised software development costs are amortised on a straight line basis for a period no longer than 3 years, being the period during which the 
benefi ts are expected to arise. Intangible assets are tested for impairment if there is an indication of impairment.

Contracts Acquired
Contracts acquired are amortised over the remaining life of the contracts at acquisition, which range from 3 to 14 months.

Intangible Assets Acquired in a Business Combination
All potential intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identifi ed and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisfy the 
defi nition of an intangible asset and their fair value can be measured reliably. Those identifi ed intangible assets not acquired as part of a business 
combination are measured at cost. Those with a fi nite useful life are amortised over their useful lives. 

(g)  Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the economic entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order 
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash fl ows that are independent from other assets, the 
economic entity estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. An impairment of goodwill is not 
subsequently reversed. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash fl ows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specifi c to the asset for which the estimates of future cash fl ows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 
(cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profi t or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset 
is carried at fair value, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
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Where an impairment loss, other than relating to goodwill, subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of 
an impairment loss is recognised in profi t or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the reversal of the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 

(h)  Employee benefi ts

Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave, Long Service Leave 
Provision is made for the economic entity’s liability for employee benefi ts arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. Employee 
benefi ts expected to be settled within one year together with benefi ts arising from wages and salaries and annual leave which will be settled after 
one year, have been measured at amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related on costs. Other employee benefi ts payable 
later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outfl ows to be made for those benefi ts. Consideration is 
given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted 
using interest rates attaching to national government guaranteed securities with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated 
future cash outfl ows. 

Superannuation 
The amount charged to the income statement in respect of superannuation represents the contributions made by the economic entity to superannuation 
funds. 

Bonuses 
A liability for employee benefi ts in the form of bonuses is recognised in employee benefi ts. This liability is based upon predetermined plans tailored 
for each participating employee and is measured on an ongoing basis during the fi nancial period.

The amount of bonuses is dependent on the outcomes for each participating employee.

(i)  Financial instruments

Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are recognised on the economic entity’s balance sheet when the economic entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

  (i)  Cash and cash equivalents

     Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

 (ii)  Financial instruments issued by the economic entity

  Debt and Equity Instruments 
  Debt and equity instruments are classifi ed as either liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 

  Transaction costs on the issue of equity instruments 
     Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the proceeds of the equity 

instruments to which the costs relate. Transaction costs are the costs that are incurred directly in connection with the issue of those equity 
instruments and which would not have been incurred had those instruments not been issued.

  Interest and dividends 
   Interest and dividends are classifi ed as expenses or as distributions of profi t consistent with the balance sheet classifi cation of the related debt 

or equity instruments or component parts of compound instruments. 

 (iii)  Receivables

    All trade debtors are recognised at the amounts receivable, as they are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition. 
Collectability of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts, which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for 
doubtful debts is raised where some doubt as to collection exists. 
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 (iv) Trade creditors

   These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the economic entity prior to the end of the fi nancial year and which are 
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

 (v)  Borrowings and borrowing costs

    Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the 
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

  Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 

 (vi)   Shares in controlled entities

  Shares in controlled entities are measured at cost less impairment costs, since fair value cannot be reliably measured.

(j)  Revenue 

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the fi nancial assets. 

Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.

 Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, duties and taxes paid. Revenue from services is recognised when the service is 
provided.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(k)  Goods and services tax (GST)

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the 
Australian Taxation Offi ce (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item 
of expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the 
ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.

 Cash fl ows are included in the cash fl ow statement on a gross basis. The GST components of cash fl ows arising from investing and fi nancing 
activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classifi ed as operating cash fl ows. 

 
(l)  Share-based payments

Equity settled share-based payments granted after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January 2005, are measured at fair value at the date 
of grant. Fair value is measured by use of a binomial model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best 
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, 
based on the economic entity’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest. 

(m) Accounting standards not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and amendments have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2006 reporting periods. The economic 
entity’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below. 

 (i)  AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and AASB 2005-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
  [AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]

    AASB 7 and AASB 2005-10 are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The economic entity has not 
adopted the standards early. Application of the standards will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the fi nancial statements, but will 
impact on the type of information disclosed in relation to the economic entity’s fi nancial statements.

  No other new accounting standards or amendments are applicable to the economic entity.
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                                                                                              Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
    Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 2: REVENUE FROM CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS 

Revenue      
Remuneration services   48,110,881 35,344,956 - - 
Other income   120,406 227,016 - -

      48,231,287 35,571,972 - - 
Other income      
Dividends received   - - 11,650,000 2,500,000 
Interest    489,244 265,952 6,160 2,949 

     489,244 265,952 11,656,160 2,502,949 

Total revenue   48,720,531 35,837,924 11,656,160 2,502,949 

NOTE 3: EXPENSES

(a) Profi t before income tax includes the following 
specifi c expenses

Finance costs       
Other persons   857,366 1,121,517 849,461 1,112,940 

Depreciation and amortisation expense      
Other assets    - 141,105 - 141,105 
Amortisation of contracts acquired 14 813,678 1,671,193 - - 
Software development  14 348,715 1,014,446 - - 
Plant and equipment  12 1,084,894 804,493 - - 

     2,247,287 3,631,237 - 141,105 
Rental expense on operating leases      
Minimum lease payments   1,403,155 975,474 - - 

(b) Auditors remuneration

Remuneration of the auditor (William Buck) of the 
parent entity for  
 Auditing or reviewing the Financial Report  73,000 48,000 2,500 - 
Taxation services provided by related practice of auditor  11,378 - 8,448 79,051 
Audits for customer contracts   15,000 - - - 
Consulting services provided by related practice of auditor  10,950 80,279 - - 



26

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

                                                                                                                                       Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
    Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 4: INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/REVENUE

(a) Components of tax (expense)/revenue

Current tax expense/(revenue)   4,088,597 3,579,467 (522,476) 111,986 
Deferred tax   (381,072) (606,658) 111,987 (606,658) 

Income tax expense/(revenue)  3,707,525 2,972,809 (410,489) (494,672) 

(b) The prima facie tax payable on profi t before income tax 
is reconciled to the income tax (expense)/revenue as follows:

Profi t before income tax (expense)/revenue  15,012,798 8,176,367 10,108,425 795,645 
Prima facie tax payable on profi t from ordinary activities before 
income tax at 30% (2005: 30%)  4,503,839 2,452,910 3,032,527 238,694 

Add:      
Tax effect of:      
- amortisation of intangible assets  244,104 501,357 - - 
- share-based payments   51,984 16,634 51,984 16,634 
- non-deductible costs   8,267 1,908 - -

      304,355 519,899 51,984 16,634 
Less:      
Tax effect of:      
- dividends received   - - (3,495,000) (750,000) 
- impact of adopting tax consolidation  (1,100,669) - - - 

Income tax expense/(revenue)  3,707,525 2,972,809 (410,489) (494,672) 

NOTE 5:  EARNINGS PER SHARE
 
                                                                                                                      Economic Entity                                                      
         Note 2006 2005 
       $ $

Reconciliation of earnings to profi t 
Net profi t      11,305,273 5,203,557
Earnings used to calculate basic earnings per share (EPS)    11,305,273 5,203,557 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in calculation of basic EPS  66,200,332 65,469,892 
Weighted average number of options on issue outstanding    1,344,026 1,437,507 
Weighted average number of shares to be issued to vendor (see below)   128,153 276,172 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in calculation of diluted EPS 67,672,511 67,183,571 

The estimated price adjustment for the acquisition of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited, based on the profi t performance of that company to
30 June 2006, is $1,185,421 (2005: $1,322,004).  An additional estimate of the amount payable in respect of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2007 
of $946,675 has also been booked.  Under the acquisition agreement, price adjustments will be paid by a combination of cash and the issue of ordinary 
shares, with the share component comprising not more than 50% of the relevant amount payable.  Pursuant to paragraph 58 of AASB 133: Earnings per 
Share, where a contract may be settled in ordinary shares or cash, the diluted EPS calculation must be based on the presumption that the contract will 
be settled in ordinary shares.  An estimated number of shares of 172,488 (2005: 413,126) is based on 50% of the estimated price adjustment and at 
a price of $3.47 (2005: $1.60) per share adjusted for the difference between the number of shares estimated to be issued (413,126) in respect of the 
price adjustment for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005 and the actual shares issued (351,597) on 10 October 2005.  For the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2006, the weighted average number of shares is based on a deemed issue date of the beginning of the fi nancial year i.e. 1 July 2005 (2005 the 
date of issue is deemed to be applied from the acquisition date of 1 November 2004), this equates to a weighted average number of shares of 128,153 
(2005: 276,172).  The amount booked in respect of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2007 does not impact the EPS calculation for the fi nancial year 
ended 30 June 2006.
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                                                                                              Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 6: DIVIDENDS 

Final fully franked ordinary dividend of $0.024 (2005: nil) 
per share franked at the tax rate of 30%   1,580,638 - 1,580,638 - 
Interim fully franked ordinary dividend of $0.025 (2005: $0.015) 
per share franked at the tax rate of 30% (2005: 30%)  1,659,846 987,899 1,659,846 987,899

     3,240,484 987,899 3,240,484 987,899 

     3,722,107 6,904,294 3,722,107 648,043 

NOTE 7: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand   2,592 1,842 - - 
Bank balances   5,708,739 7,919,986 296,583 - 
Short-term deposits   873,057 932,438 - - 
     
     6,584,388 8,854,266 296,583 - 

Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the fi nancial year as shown in the statement 
of cash fl ows is reconciled to items in the balance sheet as follows:     
 
Cash and cash equivalents   6,584,388 8,854,266 296,583 - 
Bank overdraft   (18,124) (4,138) - (4,138) 

     6,566,264 8,850,128 296,583 (4,138) 

The bank balances are bearing fl oating interest rates between 0.1% and 5.7% (2005: 0.95% and 5.14%).

The short term deposits are bearing fl oating interest rates between 5.1% and 5.7% (2005: 4.5% and 5.45%). These deposits have an average maturity 
of 96 days.

NOTE 8: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
 
Current     
Trade receivables   1,212,732 685,607 - - 
Provision for impairment of receivables  - (43,389) - - 

     1,212,732 642,218 - - 

Prepayments   2,589,566 1,120,245 195,317 116,720 
Other receivables   2,954,661 1,795,768 - - 
- wholly-owned entities   - - 33,902 - 

     6,756,959 3,558,231 229,219 116,720 

Balance of franking account at fi nancial year end adjusted for 
franking credits arising from payment of provision for income tax 
and dividends  recognised as receivables, franking debits arising 
from payment of proposed dividends and any credits that may be 
prevented from distribution in subsequent years
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                                                                                               Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
    Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 9: OTHER ASSETS

Current      
Other assets   - 128,019 - 128,019 

Non-current      
Other assets   - 119,955 - 119,955 

NOTE 10: FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-current 
Available for sale fi nancial assets (a) - - 44,115,071 41,982,915 

(a)  Available for sale Financial Assets Comprise
     
Shares in controlled entities   - - 44,115,071 41,982,915 

NOTE 11: CONTROLLED ENTITIES

      Country of  Percentage owned Percentage Owned 
 Name     Incorporation 2006 2005

Parent entity   
McMillan Shakespeare Limited    Australia   
 
Subsidiaries of parent entity   
McMillan Shakespeare Australia Pty Limited   Australia 100% 100%
Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited   Australia 100% 100%
Easilease Pty Limited    Australia 100% -

(a)  Acquisition of controlled entities
 
 (i) Acquisition of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited
 On 1 November 2004 the Company acquired 100% of the issued share capital of PKF Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited. On 10 November 2004 
that company changed its name to Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited.

 Details of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill are as follows:               
      Vendor Payment
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

 Purchase consideration (refer to Note 11(b) below):     
Cash paid   - 661,002 6,337,343 6,998,345 
Amount payable to vendor   2,132,096 (1,322,004) 1,322,004 2,132,096 
Share consideration   - 661,002 1,823,529 2,484,531 

Total purchase consideration   2,132,096 - 9,482,876 11,614,972 

Fair value of net identifi able assets acquired (refer to 
Note 11(c)(i) below)   73,444 - (2,803,178) (2,729,734) 

Goodwill (refer to Note 11(c)(i) and note 14)  2,205,540 - 6,679,698 8,885,238 
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 (ii) Acquisition of Easilease Pty Limited
 
On 16 December 2005, Easilease Pty Limited was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. On 1 February 2006, Easilease Pty 
Limited acquired the business now known as ‘Easilease’.
 
Details of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration (refer to Note 11(b) below):
            $
Cash paid        46,550
 
Total purchase consideration        46,550
 Fair value of net identifi able assets acquired (refer to Note 11(c)(ii) below)     11,000

Goodwill (refer to note 11(c)(ii) and note 14)      35,550 

(b) Purchase consideration
                                                                                               Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

Outfl ow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Cash consideration   707,572 6,337,343 661,102 6,337,343
 Less: cash balances acquired   (34,140) (489,462) - - 

Outfl ow of cash   673,432 5,847,881 661,102 6,337,343 

The initial purchase consideration included cash consideration of $6,337,343 and the issue of 1,176,470 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company with 
a fair value of $1.55 each based on the published price at the date of acquisition.

The consideration payable also included an amount payable to the vendors booked at 30 June 2005 of $1,322,004.  This represented an estimated price 
adjustment based on profi t performance of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited to 30 June 2005.  This amount was paid during the year ended 
30 June 2006 in the form of cash of $661,002 and 351,597 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company with a fair value of $1.88 each based on the 
weighted average published price over the period from 23 August 2005 to 21 September 2005.

The vendors of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited are entitled to two further payments based on the profi t performance of Remuneration Services 
(Qld) Pty Limited for the years ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007. The amount payable in respect of the year ended 30 June 2006 is estimated to 
be $1,185,421 based on the profi t performance of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited for the year ended 30 June 2006.   An additional estimate 
of the amount payable in respect of the year ended 30 June 2007 of $946,675 has also been booked.  The amount has been estimated having regard 
to the budgeted performance for Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007.  This amount could vary based on the 
actual fi nancial performance of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007.  The amount payable could range from $nil 
to $1,633,334.  The amounts due for the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2007 are payable within 30 days of adoption of the Financial Report for each 
respective year.

Under the acquisition agreement, the price adjustments will be made by a combination of cash and the issue of ordinary shares. The share component 
will comprise between 25% and 50% of the amount payable and this determination is at the discretion of the Board.
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(c) Assets and liabilities acquired
The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisitions are as follows:
   
(i) Acquisition of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Ltd
          Fair value  Fair value
 Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date   Book value adjustments on acquisition 
      $ $ $

Cash      489,462 - 489,462 
Trade receivables    92,343 - 92,343 
Plant and equipment    301,749 - 301,749 
Deferred tax asset    32,826 - 32,826 
Trade and other payables    (13,082) - (13,082) 
Provision for employee benefi ts   (305,887) - (305,887) 
Tax liability    (49,319) (73,444) (122,763) 
Lease liabilities    (161,723) - (161,723) 
Other     (68,062) - (68,062) 
Contracts    - 2,484,871 2,484,871
 
Net identifi able assets and liabilities   318,307 2,411,427 2,729,734 

The goodwill is attributable to the high profi tability of the acquired business and synergies expected to arise after the Company’s acquisition of 
Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Limited. The fair values of assets and liabilities acquired are based on discounted cash fl ow models.

(ii) Acquisition of Easilease Pty Limited
          Fair value  Fair value
 Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date   Book value adjustments on acquisition 
      $ $ $

Cash     34,140 - 34,140 
Plant and equipment    11,000 - 11,000 
Deferred tax asset    14,631 - 14,631 
Provision for employee benefi ts   (48,771) - (48,771)

 Net identifi able assets and liabilities   11,000 - 11,000 
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                                                                                               Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 12: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Property Plant and Equipment 

Plant and equipment   
At cost    8,084,035 6,655,497 - - 
Less accumulated depreciation   (5,616,675) (4,531,781) - - 

Total plant and equipment   2,467,360 2,123,716 - - 

                                                                                                         Economic Entity
       Total 2006 Total 2005 
       $ $

 
(b) Detailed table -  current and prior years

Plant and equipment - cost   
Balance at the beginning of year    6,655,497 5,256,721 
Additions     1,417,988 1,031,881 
Additions through business combinations    11,000 445,784 
Disposals     (450) (78,889) 

Balance at 30 June 2006     8,084,035 6,655,497 

Depreciation     
Balance at the beginning of year    (4,531,781) (3,658,913) 
Depreciation expense     (1,084,894) (804,493) 
Accumulated depreciation through business combinations    - (144,036) 
Disposals     - 75,661 

Balance at 30 June 2006     (5,616,675) (4,531,781) 

Carrying amount      
At 1 July 2005     2,123,716 1,597,807

 At 30 June 2006     2,467,360 2,123,716 

                                                                                       Economic Entity
        Total 
        $

(c) Movements in Carrying Amounts

Plant and equipment   
  Balance at the beginning of year     2,123,716 
Additions      1,417,988 
Additions through business combinations     11,000 
Disposals      (450) 
Depreciation expense      (1,084,894)

 Carrying amount at the end of year     2,467,360 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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                                                                                               Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
    Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 13: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

(a) Asset
 
Amounts recognised in profi t or loss      
Doubtful debts   - 13,017 - - 
Employee benefi ts   444,305 301,621 - - 
Plant and equipment   478,055 407,122 - - 
Accrued expenses   260,197 345,549 8,131 8,131 
Prepayments   (140,855) (156,324) - - 
Tax losses   - 854,962 - 854,962 
Other     - 1,122,082 - -

     1,041,702 2,888,029 8,131 863,093 
Amounts recognised directly in equity      
Share issue expenses   223,974 335,961 223,974 335,961

     1,265,676 3,223,990 232,105 1,199,054

 (b) Movement
  
Opening balance at 1 July    3,223,990 2,694,108 1,199,054 704,382 
Credited/(charged) to income statement 4 381,075 609,042 - 606,658 
Tax losses utilised   (854,962) - (854,962) - 
Transfer between deferred tax and provision  (1,387,071) - - - 
Transfer from deferred tax to current tax for amounts 
recognised directly in equity - Share issue expenses  (111,987) (111,986) (111,987) (111,986) 
Acquisition of subsidiary   11 14,631 32,826 - - 

Closing balance at 30 June   1,265,676 3,223,990 232,105 1,199,054 
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                                                                                                                Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 14: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Carrying values table
 
Goodwill  
Cost    33,110,848 30,758,237 - - 

Net carrying value   33,110,848 30,758,237 - - 

Software development costs   
Cost    3,178,502 3,178,502 - - 
Accumulated amortisation    (3,079,349) (2,730,634) - - 

Net carrying value   99,153 447,868 - - 

Contracts acquired   
Cost    2,484,871 2,484,871 - - 
Accumulated amortisation   (2,484,871) (1,671,193) - - 

Net carrying value   - 813,678 - - 

Total Intangibles   33,210,001 32,019,783 - - 

(b) Intangible assets - reconciliation table - net book amount
      Software             
                                 Goodwill development costs Contracts acquired           Total
     $ $ $ $

 
Net book amount   
Balance beginning of year   30,758,237 447,868 813,678 32,019,783 
Additions   2,352,611 - - 2,352,611 
Amortisation charge   - (348,715) (813,678) (1,162,393) 

Balance end of year   33,110,848 99,153 - 33,210,001

                                                                                                                Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 15: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
 
Current     
Unsecured liabilities   
Trade payables   2,157,052 2,216,404 - - 
GST payable   435,438 308,272 - - 
Sundry creditors and accruals   5,007,568 2,145,014 143,918 286,098 
Amounts due to vendor   2,132,096 1,322,043 2,132,096 1,322,043 
Amount payable to:    
- wholly-owned entities   - - 11,781,420 7,329,960 

     9,732,154 5,991,733 14,057,434 8,938,101 
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                                                                                                                                                  Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 16: BORROWINGS
 
Current      
Secured liabilities      
Bank overdraft   18,124 4,138 - 4,138 
Finance lease liability   65,466 62,797 - - 
Bank loans   3,250,000 2,000,000 3,250,000 2,000,000 

Total current liabilities   3,333,590 2,066,935 3,250,000 2,004,138 

Non-current      
Secured liabilities   
Finance lease obligation   - 67,795 - - 
Bank loans   - 12,750,000 - 12,750,000 

Total non-current liabilities   - 12,817,795 - 12,750,000 

The bank loan facilities are secured by fi xed and fl oating charges over the assets of the Company and McMillan Shakespeare Australia Pty Limited.
The leased assets are secured over the assets subject to fi nance.
The weighted average interest rates are 7.17% on the bank loans and overdraft and 7.58% on the fi nance lease (2005: 7.28% and 7.58% respectively). 

                                                                                                                Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 17: CURRENT TAX LIABILITY
 
Income tax   1,442,461 2,696,350 - - 

NOTE 18: PROVISIONS
 
Employee benefi ts:      
Current    1,308,703 940,198 - - 
Non-current   172,314 70,012 - - 

Aggregate employee benefi ts liability  1,481,017 1,010,210 - - 

NOTE 19: OTHER LIABILITIES

Current
Income received in advance   631,048 800,778 - -

     631,048 800,778 - -

 NOTE 20: ISSUED CAPITAL
     
66,453,266 (2005: 65,859,900) fully paid ordinary shares  20,688,848 19,833,603 20,688,848 19,833,603

     20,688,848 19,833,603 20,688,848 19,833,603 
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(a) Reconciliation of movement in capital
      Number of shares Issue Price  Ordinary shares
       $ $ 
   
Balance at 1 July 2004    64,683,430 - 18,010,074 
Shares issued during the year:    
9 November 2004    1,176,470 1.550 1,823,529 

Balance at 30 June 2005    65,859,900 - 19,833,603 

Shares issued during the year:    
10 October 2005    351,597 1.880 661,002 

Options exercised during the year:   
13 October 2005    8,375 0.583 4,880 
3 November 2005    35,626 0.583 20,759 
8 December 2005    11,513 0.583 6,709 
1 February 2006    15,250 0.583 8,886 
9 March 2006    57,675 1.510 86,972 
14 March 2006    29,500 0.583 17,190 
15 March 2006    24,413 0.583 14,225 
11 April 2006    25,125 0.583 14,640 
21 April 2006    9,167 0.583 5,342 
1 May 2006    25,125 0.583 14,640 

Balance at 30 June 2006    66,453,266 - 20,688,848 

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the number of members shares held. At 
member’s meetings, each fully paid ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each shareholder has one vote on a show 
of hands.

(b) Options
At 30 June 2006 there were 1,048,905 (30 June 2005: 1,325,000) unissued ordinary shares for which options were outstanding.

(c) Share issue subsequent to balance date

On 22 August 2006 the Directors resolved to satisfy the purchase price adjustment due to the vendors of Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Ltd in respect 
of the year ended 30 June 2006 by way of 50% cash and 50% shares.  The issue price of the shares will be based on the weighted average published 
price of the Company’s shares determined over the 20 business day period commencing 10 business days before the adoption of the Financial Report.

NOTE 21: RESERVES

Option Reserve
Movements in the reserve are detailed in the Statements of Changes in Equity.
The reserve records amounts for the fair value of options granted and recognised as an employee benefi ts expense but not exercised.
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      Previous GAAP  Effect of Australian Equivalents
      as at 1 July 2004  adoption to IFRS at 1 July 2004
     Note $ $ $

NOTE 22: FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN 
EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 
REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Economic entity - reconciliation of equity (date of transition)

Reconciliation of Equity at 1 July 2004 

Current assets    
Cash and cash equivalents    5,370,587 - 5,370,587 
Trade and other receivables    1,203,788 - 1,203,788 
Other current assets    624,095 - 624,095 
Total current assets    7,198,470 - 7,198,470 

Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment    1,597,808 - 1,597,808 
Deferred tax assets   (iii) 2,246,160 447,948 2,694,108 
Intangible assets    25,440,256 - 25,440,256 
Other non-current assets    216,755 - 216,755 
Total non-current assets    29,500,979 447,948 29,948,927 

Total assets    36,699,449 447,948 37,147,397 

Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables    2,495,588 - 2,495,588 
Borrowings    2,000,000 - 2,000,000 
Current tax liabilities    1,588,545 - 1,588,545 
Provisions    684,532 - 684,532 
Other current liabilities    30,100 - 30,100 
Total current liabilities    6,798,765 - 6,798,765 

Non-current liabilities    
Borrowings    11,750,000 - 11,750,000 
Provisions    49,107 - 49,107 
Total non-current liabilities    11,799,107 - 11,799,107 

Total liabilities    18,597,872 - 18,597,872 

Net assets    18,101,577 447,948 18,549,525 

Equity    
Contributed equity   (iii) 17,450,140 559,934 18,010,074 
Reserves    (ii) - 11,266 11,266 
Retained earnings   (iv) 651,437 (123,252) 528,185 

Total equity    18,101,577 447,948 18,549,525
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      Previous GAAP  Effect of Australian Equivalents
      as at 1 July 2004  adoption to IFRS at 1 July 2004
     Note $ $ $

(b) Parent entity - reconciliation of equity (date of transition)

Reconciliation of Equity at 1 July 2004 

Current assets    
Cash and cash equivalents    961,076 - 961,076 
Trade and other receivables    1,726 - 1,726 
Other current assets    299,002 - 299,002 
Total current assets    1,261,804 - 1,261,804 

Non-current assets    
Other fi nancial assets    32,500,000 - 32,500,000 
Deferred tax assets   (iii) 256,434 447,948 704,382 
Other non-current assets    216,755 - 216,755 
Total non-current assets    32,973,189 447,948 33,421,137 

Total assets    34,234,993 447,948 34,682,941 

Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables    3,259,911 - 3,259,911 
Borrowings    2,000,000 - 2,000,000 
Total current liabilities    5,259,911 - 5,259,911 

Non-current liabilities    
Borrowings    11,750,000 - 11,750,000 
Total non-current liabilities    11,750,000 - 11,750,000 

Total liabilities    17,009,911 - 17,009,911 

Net assets    17,225,082 447,948 17,673,030 

Equity    
Issued capital   (iii) 17,450,140 559,934 18,010,074 
Reserves    (ii) - 11,266 11,266 
Accumulated losses   (iv) (225,058) (123,252) (348,310) 

Total equity    17,225,082 447,948 17,673,030 
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      Previous GAAP  Effect of Australian Equivalents
      as at 30 Jun 2005  adoption to IFRS at 30 Jun 2005
     Note $ $ $

(c) Economic entity - reconciliation of equity (prior year)

Reconciliation of Equity at 30 June 2005 

Current assets    
Cash and cash equivalents    8,854,266 - 8,854,266 
Trade and other receivables    3,558,231 - 3,558,231 
Other current assets    128,019 - 128,019 
Total current assets    12,540,516 - 12,540,516 

Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment    2,123,716 - 2,123,716 
Deferred tax assets   (iii) 2,888,028 335,962 3,223,990 
Intangible assets   (i) 31,702,532 317,251 32,019,783 
Other non-current assets    119,955 - 119,955 
Total non-current assets    36,834,231 653,213 37,487,444 

Total assets    49,374,747 653,213 50,027,960 

Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables    5,991,733 - 5,991,733 
Borrowings    2,066,935 - 2,066,935 
Current tax liabilities    2,696,350 - 2,696,350 
Provisions    940,198 - 940,198 
Other current liabilities    800,778 - 800,778 
Total current liabilities    12,495,994 - 12,495,994 

Non-current liabilities    
Borrowings    12,817,795 - 12,817,795 
Provisions    70,012 - 70,012 
Total non-current liabilities    12,887,807 - 12,887,807 

Total liabilities    25,383,801 - 25,383,801 

Net assets    23,990,946 653,213 24,644,159 

Equity    
Contributed equity   (iii) 19,273,669 559,934 19,833,603 
Reserves    (ii) - 66,713 66,713 
Retained earnings   (iv) 4,717,277 26,566 4,743,843 

Total equity    23,990,946 653,213 24,644,159 
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      Previous GAAP  Effect of Australian Equivalents
      as at 30 Jun 2005  adoption to IFRS at 30 Jun 2005 
     Note $ $ $

(d) Parent entity - reconciliation of equity (prior year)

Reconciliation of Equity at 30 June 2005
 
Current assets    
Trade and other receivables    116,720 - 116,720 
Other current assets    128,019 - 128,019 
Total current assets    244,739 - 244,739 

Non-current assets    
Other fi nancial assets    41,982,915 - 41,982,915 
Deferred tax assets   (iii) 863,092 335,962 1,199,054 
Other non-current assets    119,955 - 119,955 
Total non-current assets    42,965,962 335,962 43,301,924 

Total assets    43,210,701 335,962 43,546,663 

Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables    8,938,101 - 8,938,101 
Borrowings    2,004,138 - 2,004,138 
Total current liabilities    10,942,239 - 10,942,239 

Non-current liabilities    
Borrowings    12,750,000 - 12,750,000 
Total non-current liabilities    12,750,000 - 12,750,000 

Total liabilities    23,692,239 - 23,692,239 

Net assets    19,518,462 335,962 19,854,424 

Equity    
Contributed equity   (iii) 19,273,669 559,934 19,833,603 
Reserves    (ii) - 66,713 66,713 
Retained earnings/ (accumulated losses)  (iv) 244,793 (290,685) (45,892) 

Total equity    19,518,462 335,962 19,854,424 
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      Previous  Effect of Australian Equivalents
       GAAP adoption to IFRS
     Note $ $ $

(e) Reconciliation of profi t by nature (prior year)

Economic entity - reconciliation of profi t for 2005 
Revenue from continuing operations   35,837,924 - 35,837,924 
Employee and directors benefi ts expense  (ii) (16,096,597) (55,447) (16,152,044) 
Depreciation, amortisation and write down expenses  (i) (3,948,488) 317,251 (3,631,237) 
Technology and communication expenses   (2,456,031) - (2,456,031) 
Property and corporate expenses   (1,530,824) - (1,530,824) 
Borrowing costs expense    (1,121,517) - (1,121,517) 
Other expenses    (2,769,905) - (2,769,905) 

Profi t before income tax    7,914,562 261,804 8,176,366 
Income tax expense    (iii) (2,860,823) (111,986) (2,972,809) 

Net profi t after related income tax expense   5,053,739 149,818 5,203,557 

Net profi t attributable to members of the parent entity  5,053,739 149,818 5,203,557 

Parent Entity - reconciliation of profi t or loss for 2005
Revenue from continuing operations   2,502,949 - 2,502,949 
Employee and directors benefi ts expenses  (ii) (173,695) (55,447) (229,142) 
Depreciation, amortisation and write down expenses   (141,105) - (141,105) 
Property and corporate expenses   (193,286) - (193,286) 
Borrowing costs    (1,112,940) - (1,112,940)
 Other expenses    (30,831) - (30,831) 

Net profi t before income tax    851,092 (55,447) 795,645
 Income tax expense   (iii) 606,658 (111,986) 494,672 

Net profi t after related income tax expense   1,457,750 (167,433) 1,290,317 

Profi t attributable to members of the parent entity   1,457,750 (167,433) 1,290,317 

Effect of A-IFRS on the cash fl ow statement for the year ended 30 June 2005
There are no material differences between the cash fl ow statement presented under A IFRS and the cash fl ow statement presented under the superseded 
policies. 

Notes to the reconciliation of income and equity 

(i) Goodwill and identifi able intangible assets

The economic entity has elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to the date of transition to A IFRS. The acquisition of 
Remuneration Services (Qld) Pty Ltd, which occurred after the date of transition to A IFRS, has been restated resulting in the recognition of the value of 
contracts acquired as an identifi able intangible asset for an amount of $2,484,871 and a corresponding reduction in the value of goodwill. The value 
of these contracts has been amortised over the life of each individual contract. The effect of this amortisation is a reduction in net profi t before tax of 
$1,671,193 for the year ended 30 June 2005.

Goodwill, which was amortised under superseded policies, is not amortised under A IFRS from the date of transition. The effect of the change is an 
increase in the carrying amount of goodwill by $1,988,444 and an increase in net profi t before tax of $1,988,444 for the year ended 30 June 2005. There 
is no tax effect as deferred taxes are not recognised for temporary differences arising from goodwill or amortisation of contracts that are not deductible 
for tax purposes.
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(ii) Share based payments

As at 1 July 2004 and for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2005, share based payments of $11,266 and $66,713 (included in ‘employee and director 
benefi t expenses’), which were not recognised under the superseded policies were recognised under A IFRS, with a corresponding increase in the 
employee equity settled benefi ts reserve.

(iii) Income Tax 

Under superseded policies, the economic entity adopted tax effect accounting principles whereby income tax expense was calculated on pre tax 
accounting profi ts after adjustment for permanent differences. The tax effect of timing differences, which occur when items were included or allowed for 
income tax purposes in a period different to that for accounting were recognised at current taxation rates as deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, 
as applicable. 

Under A IFRS, deferred tax is determined using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the fi nancial statements and their corresponding tax bases. 

The effect of the above income tax adjustments is that deferred tax not recognised under previous GAAP at 1 July 2004 is $447,948 and $335,962 at 
30 June 2005. The income tax adjustments also resulted in an increase to issued capital of $559,934 at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005.

(iv) Retained earnings

The effect of the above adjustments to retained earnings is as follows:
                                                                                                                Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

Retained earnings under AGAAP  4,717,277 651,437 244,793 (225,058) 
Amortisation of goodwill   1,988,444 - - - 
Amortisation of contracts   (1,671,193) - - - 
Tax effect of share issue   (223,972) (111,986) (223,972) (111,986) 
Share based payments   (66,713) (11,266) (66,713) (11,266) 

Adjusted A-IFRS retained earnings/(accumulated losses) 4,743,843 528,185 (45,892) (348,310) 

NOTE 23: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Reconciliation of cash fl ow from operations with profi t from 
operating activities after income tax
 Profi t for the year   11,305,273 5,203,557 10,518,914 1,290,317 
Non-cash fl ows in profi t from operating activities:      
Amortisation   1,162,393 2,826,744 - 141,105 
Depreciation   1,084,894 804,493 - - 
Option expense   173,280 55,447 173,280 55,447 
Tax consolidation benefi t   (1,100,669) - - - 
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  450 9,148 - - 

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of purchase 
and disposal of subsidiaries:      
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  (3,140,651) (1,141,860) 21,120 1,726 
(Increase)/decrease in other assets  148,256 (692,232) (1,983,841) 54,263 
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and accruals  2,477,066 2,867,568 1,989,916 (20,787) 
Increase/(decrease) in income taxes payable  (1,365,446) 1,058,498 (522,476) - 
(Increase)/decrease in deferred taxes   3,068,310 (497,057) 966,950 (494,672) 
Decrease in administration fees received in advance  169,730 14,698 - - 
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefi ts  478,388 (29,316) - - 

Net cash from operating activities  14,461,274 10,479,688 11,163,863 1,027,399 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
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NOTE 24: COMPANY DETAILS

The registered offi ce of the Company is:

McMillan Shakespeare Limited
Level 4
321 Exhibition Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

The principal places of business are:

Victorian Operations Queensland Operations
Level 4   Level 13
321 Exhibition Street  60 Edward Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3000 BRISBANE QLD 4000
 

NOTE 25: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

(a) Finance Lease Commitments                                                            Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

Payable - minimum lease payments      
- Not later than 12 months   69,396 70,208 - - 
- Between 12 months and 5 years  - 69,396 - - 

Minimum lease payments   69,396 139,604 - - 
Less future fi nance charges   (3,930) (9,012) - - 

Present value of minimum lease payments  65,466 130,592 - - 

 Represented by:      
  - current liability   65,466 62,797 - - 
  - non-current liability   - 67,795 - - 

Total    65,466 130,592 - - 

The fi nance lease liability consists of equipment leases that are 
non-cancellable leases with varying terms and rent payable 
quarterly in arrears.

(b) Operating Lease Commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not 
capitalised in the fi nancial statements:

Payable -  minimum lease payments      
- Not later than 12 months   1,547,950 1,525,835 - - 
- Between 12 months and 5 years  4,502,625 6,073,988 - - 

     6,050,575 7,599,823 - - 

The property leases are non-cancellable leases with varying terms, with rent payable monthly in advance. Individual rental agreements specify each rental 
adjustment. The equipment leases are non-cancellable leases with varying terms, with rent payable quarterly in arrears.

NOTE 26: SEGMENT REPORTING

The economic entity operates solely in Australia within the remuneration services industry. All revenue, profi t and assets relate to operations predominantly 
in Australia.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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                                                                                                              Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

NOTE 27: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND 
CONTINGENT ASSETS

Estimates of the potential fi nancial effect of contingent 
liabilities that may become payable:
 
Guarantees issued for the performance of contractual obligations. 
$800,000 of those guarantees are supported by a term deposit 1,150,000 1,550,000 - - 

Guarantee issued in respect of property leases supported by a 
term deposit   504,637 48,537 380,381 - 

     1,654,637 1,598,537 380,381 - 

NOTE 28: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Wholly owned group

Transactions between the Company and other entities within the wholly owned group during the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005 consisted of:
(a) loans advanced to the Company; and
(b) the payment of dividends to the Company.

Aggregate amounts including in the determination of profi t (loss) from ordinary activities before income tax that resulted from transactions with entities 
in the wholly owned group:
                                                                                                              Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

 Dividend revenue   - - 11,650,000 2,500,000 
Aggregate amounts receivable from entities within the 
wholly owned group at balance date:      
Current receivables   - - 33,902 - 

Aggregate amounts payable to entities within the 
wholly owned group at balance date:   
Current payables   - - 11,781,420 7,329,960 

(b) Key Management Personnel
 
The following were key management personnel of the consolidated entity at any time during the reporting period and unless otherwise indicated were 
key management personnel for the entire period:
(a) Non-executive directors: Ronald Pitcher, John Bennetts, Ross Chessari and Graeme McMahon;
(b) Executive director: Anthony Podesta; and
(c) Executives: Peter Lang, Patrick Staunton and Paul McCluskey.
                                                                                                              Economic Entity                                                           Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

Short term employment benefi ts  1,026,345 795,968 205,000 125,000 
Post employment benefi ts   87,994 64,097 18,450 11,250 
Termination payments   - 10,014 - - 
Share based payments   142,981 16,924 142,981 16,924 

     1,257,320 887,003 366,431 153,174 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The number of shares in the Company held during the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 by each Director and each of the specifi ed executives of the 
economic entity, including their personally related entities, are set out below:
      Balance at the  Other changes Balance held at 
      start of the year during the year balance date

Year ending 30 June 2006 
Directors     
RG Pitcher     105,100 - 105,100 
AG Podesta    15,101,819 - 15,101,819 
R Chessari    8,000,063 - 8,000,063 
JG Bennetts    6,930,546 - 6,930,546 
G McMahon    100,000 - 100,000 
      30,237,528 - 30,237,528
Specifi ed executives   
PA Lang     286,341 43,177 329,518 
PJ Staunton    1,176,470 50,228 1,226,698 
P McCluskey    - 50,000 50,000 
      1,462,811 143,405 1,606,216 

Year ending 30 June 2005
Directors   
RG Pitcher     100,000 5,100 105,100 
AG Podesta    15,101,819 - 15,101,819 
R Chessari    8,590,792 (590,729) 8,000,063 
JG Bennetts    7,730,546 (800,000) 6,930,546 
G McMahon    100,000 - 100,000 
      31,623,157 (1,385,629) 30,237,528
Specifi ed executives   
G Tsiamis (resigned 20 May 2005)    850,247 (280,062) 570,185 
PA Lang     619,481 (333,140) 286,341 
PJ Staunton    - 1,176,470 1,176,470 
      1,469,728 563,268 2,032,996 

The number of options to acquire shares in the Company held during the fi nancial year 
ended 30 June 2006 by each Director and each of the specifi ed executives of the 
economic entity, including their personally related entities, are set out below: 

Year ending 30 June 2006
Directors   
RG Pitcher     - - - 
AG Podesta    - - - 
R Chessari    - - - 
JG Bennetts    - - - 
G McMahon    - - - 
      - - -
Specifi ed executives   
PA Lang     120,000 (40,000) 80,000
PJ Staunton    120,000 (6,500) 113,500
P McCluskey    - 100,000 100,000
      240,000 53,500 293,500

Year ending 30 June 2005
Directors   
RG Pitcher     - - - 
AG Podesta    - - - 
R Chessari    - - - 
JG Bennetts    - - - 
G McMahon    - - - 
      - - - 
Specifi ed executives   
G Tsiamis (resigned 20 May 2005)    150,000 (150,000) -
PA Lang     120,000 - 120,000
PJ Staunton    - 120,000 120,000
      270,000 (30,000) 240,000
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NOTE 29:  SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Company established the Employee Option Plan in 2004.  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines the number of options to be 
granted on the basis of the position, duties and responsibilities of the relevant employees.

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration over unissued ordinary shares in the Company.  Options are granted for a four year period and 
the exercise price is based on prevailing market prices at the grant date other than otherwise disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights.

Other than otherwise disclosed in the Remuneration Report, all options were issued subject to the following exercise conditions:

•  50% of the options vest and are exercisable in equal proportions on or after 15 September 2005, 15 September 2006 and 15 September 2007, but 
the entitlement to exercise is subject to continuity of employment;

•  25% of the options vest and are exercisable in equal proportions on or after 15 September 2005, 15 September 2006 and 15 September 2007, 
but the entitlement to exercise is subject to continuity of employment and achievement of predetermined targets.  For the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2005, the targets centred around the achievement of EBITDA, operating revenue and client number hurdles (with achievement of less than 
the predetermined EBITDA, operating revenue and client number hurdles resulting in partial or no vesting entitlement) for the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2006, the targets centred on the achievement of budgeted NPAT; and

•  25% of the options vest and are exercisable in equal proportions on or after 15 September 2005, 15 September 2006 and 15 September 2007, but 
the entitlement to exercise is subject to continuity of employment and satisfaction of individual performance indicators for the fi nancial years ending 
30 June 2005, 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007.

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan:
         
   Balance  Granted  Exercised  Forfeited  Balance  Exercisable 
   at start of during during during at end at end 
   the year the year the year the year of the year of the year
Grant date Expiry date Exercise price Number Number Number Number Number Number

Consolidated and parent entity - 2006     
15 March 2004 15 March 2008 $0.50 1,130,000 - 191,769 (173,764) 764,467 97,799
14 December 2004 14 December 2008 $1.54 120,000 - - (6,500) 113,500 33,500
21 April 2005 21 April 2009 $1.59 75,000 - - (4,062) 70,938 20,938
15 August 2005 15 August 2009 $0.50 - 150,000 50,000 - 100,000 -

   1,325,000 150,000 241,769 (184,326) 1,048,905 152,237

 Weighted average exercise price $0.66 $0.50 $0.50 $0.56 $0.69 $0.88

Consolidated and parent entity - 2005     
15 March 2004 15 March 2008 $0.50 1,500,000 - - (370,000) 1,130,000 -
14 December 2004 14 December 2008 $1.54 - 120,000 - - 120,000 -
21 April 2005 21 April 2009 $1.59 - 75,000 - - 75,000 -

   1,500,000 195,000 - (370,000) 1,325,000 -

 Weighted average exercise price $0.50 $1.56 - $0.50 $0.66 -

 
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options during the year was $2.66.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the year was 2 years (2005: 1.8 years).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the year was $1.15 per option (2005: $0.254 and $0.263).  The fair value at grant date is 
determined using a binomial option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at the grant date, the 
expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 30 June 2006 included:

• options are granted for no consideration;
• exercise price: $0.50 (2005: $1.54 and $1.59);
• grant date: 15 August 2005 (2005: 21 April 2005 and 14 December 2004);
• expiry date: 15 August 2009 (2005: 21 April 2009 and 14 December 2009);
• share price at grant date: $1.65 (2005: $1.54 and $1.59);
• expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: 20% (2005: 20%);
• expected dividend yield: 3% (2005: 3%);
• risk-free interest rate: 5.25% (2005: 5.25%).

The expected price volatility is based on historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future 
volatility due to publicly available information.

Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the year as part of employee and Director benefi ts expense were are 
follows:
                                                       Consolidated                                               Parent Entity
     2006 2005 2006 2005
     $ $ $ $

  Options issued under Employee Option Plan   173,280 55,447 173,280 55,447

NOTE 30: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential failure of counterparties to meet their obligations under the respective contracts at maturity.
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised fi nancial assets, is the carrying 
amount of those assets, net of any provisions for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the balance sheets and notes to the Financial Report.

The economic entity does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or economic entity of debtors under fi nancial instruments 
entered into by the economic entity.

All the customers are concentrated in Australia.

(b) Net Fair Value
For all fi nancial assets and liabilities the net fair value approximates their carrying value. Financial assets where the carrying amount exceeds net fair 
values have not been written down as the economic entity intends to hold these assets to maturity.
The aggregate net fair values and carrying amount of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities are disclosed in the statement of fi nancial position and in 
the notes to the fi nancial statements.

(c) Interest Rate Risk
The economic entity’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a fi nancial instrument’s value will fl uctuate as a result of changes in market 
interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rates on classes of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities, is detailed in the notes to the fi nancial 
statements.

NOTE 31: EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Since the end of the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006, the Directors have not become aware of any matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with 
in the fi nancial statements that has signifi cantly affected or may signifi cantly affect the operations of the Company or the economic entity, the results of 
those operations or the state of affairs in subsequent fi nancial years.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The Directors are of the opinion that:

1.  the fi nancial statements and notes on pages 15 to 46 and the audited remuneration disclosures on pages 5 to 9 are in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001(Cth) and:

 (a)   comply with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 (Cth) and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

 (b)   give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s fi nancial position as at 30 June 2006 and fi nancial performance for the fi nancial year ended 
on that date; and

2. there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Offi cer and Chief Financial Offi cer required by section 295A of the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Ronald Pitcher   Anthony Podesta
Chairman   Managing Director

11 September 2006
Melbourne, Australia
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

Scope

The fi nancial report and directors’ responsibility
The fi nancial report comprises the balance sheet, income statement, cash fl ow statement and the statement of changes in equity, accompanying notes to the 
fi nancial statements, and the directors’ declaration for both McMillan Shakespeare Limited (Company) and consolidated entities for the year ended 30 June 
2006.  The consolidated entity comprises both the Company and the entities it controlled during that year.

The Company has disclosed information relating to the remuneration of key management personnel as required by AASB 124 “Related Party Disclosures” 
under the heading “Remuneration Report” on pages 5 and 9 of the director’s report and not in the fi nancial report as permitted by the Corporations Act 2001 
(Cth).

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the fi nancial report in accordance with the Corporations 
Act 2001 (Cth).  This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and 
detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the fi nancial report.  The directors are also responsible for the 
remuneration disclosures in the director’s report.

Audit approach
We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the Company.  Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing and Assurance Standards, in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the fi nancial report is free of material misstatement and the 
remuneration disclosures comply with AASB 124.  The nature of an audit is infl uenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, 
the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence.  Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all 
material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the fi nancial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), 
Accounting Standards and other mandatory fi nancial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s 
and the consolidated entity’s fi nancial position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their operations and cash fl ows and whether the 
remuneration disclosures comply with AASB 124.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

• Examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial report; and
•  Assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of signifi cant accounting estimates made by the 

directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over fi nancial reporting when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, 
our audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal controls

Independence
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian accounting ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001 
(Cth).

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the fi nancial report of the Company is in accordance with:

• The Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), including:
 •  giving a true and fair view of McMillan Shakespeare Ltd and consolidated entity’s fi nancial position as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for 

the year ended on that date; and
 • complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001 (Cth); and
•  The disclosures in relation to the remuneration of key management personnel as contained in the director’s report under the heading “remuneration 

report” comply with the requirements of AASB 124 “Related Party Disclosures”.

William Buck  Brad Taylor
Chartered Accountants  Partner

Dated this 11th day of September 2006.
Melbourne, Australia.
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I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to our review of McMillan Shakespeare Limited for the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2006 there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth); and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct.

William Buck   Brad Taylor
Chartered Accountants  Lead Audit Partner

Dated this 11th day of September 2006.
Melbourne, Australia.

William Buck
ABN 13 871 256 387

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Additional information required by the ASX Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report is set out below:

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

As at the date of this Annual Report, the number of shares held by substantial shareholders and their associates is as follows:

Shareholder                                                                                 Number of Ordinary Shares

Meddiscope Pty Limited1     15,101,819
Chessari Holdings Pty Limited2     6,425,063
Asia Pac Technology Pty Limited3    5,545,546
Portfolio Partners Limited (and certain entities in the AVIVA plc Group)   4,205,447
Thorney Investments Pty Limited (and its associates)    3,892,412

1 Meddiscope Pty Limited is a company associated with Mr Anthony Podesta, the Chief Executive Offi cer of the Company.
2 Chessari Holdings Pty Limited is a company associated with Mr Ross Chessari, a non-executive Director.
3 Asia Pac Technology Pty Limited is a company associated with Mr John Bennetts, a non-executive Director.

NUMBER OF SHARE & OPTION HOLDERS

As at the date of this Annual Report, the number of holders of ordinary shares and options in the Company are as follows:

Class of Security     Number of Holders

Fully paid ordinary shares     621
Options exercisable at $0.50 and expiring on 15 March 2008   16
Options exercisable at $1.54 and expiring on 14 December 2008   1
Options exercisable at $1.59 and expiring on 21 April 2009   1
Options exercisable at $0.50 and expiring on 15 August 2009   1

VOTING RIGHTS

In accordance with the Constitution of the Company and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), every member present in person or by proxy at a general 
meeting of the members of the Company has:
• on a vote taken by a show of hands, one vote; and
• on a vote taken by a poll, one vote for every fully paid ordinary share held in the Company.

A poll may be demanded at a general meeting of the members of the Company in the manner permitted by the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARE & OPTION HOLDERS

Distribution of Shares & Options               Number of Holders of Ordinary Shares   Number of Holders of Options

1 - 1,000   76 -
1,001 - 5,000   190 -
5,001 - 10,000   157 -
10,001 – 100,000   156 17
100,000+   42 2

The number of shareholders who hold less than a marketable parcel of 127 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company is two shareholders.

TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS

As at the date of this Annual Report, the details of the top 20 shareholders in the Company are as follows:

No.            Name   Number of Ordinary Shares                                Percentage of Ordinary Shares1

1            Meddiscope Pty Ltd   15,101,819  22.72%
2  Chessari Holdings Pty Ltd 6,425,063  9.67%
3   Asia Pac Technology Pty Ltd 5,545,546  8.34%
4   Invia Custodian Pty Limited 5,289,092  7.96%
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5   Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 4,356,604  6.55%
6   National Nominees Limited 3,140,345  4.72%
7   J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 2,337,997  3.52%
8   Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 1,962,300  2.95%
9   Mirrabooka Investments Limited 1,500,000  2.26%
10   UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 1,497,000  2.25%
11   Queensland Investment Corporation 1,485,518  2.23%
12  Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 1,451,277  2.18%
13           Ann Leslie Ryan  1,358,418  2.04%
14   Ms Bernadette Mary Staunton 1,026,698  1.54%
15   ANZ Nominees Limited 1,021,093  1.54%
16   Thorney Investments Pty Ltd 1,000,000  1.50%
17   UBS Nominees Pty Limited 445,000  0.67%
18   Thaw Nominees Pty Limited 429,351  0.65%
19   Bydand Capital Pty Limited 399,862  0.60%
20   Mooroolbark International Pty Limited 367,078  0.55%

1 As at the date of this Annual Report, 66,470,016 fully paid ordinary shares have been issued by the Company.
2 Meddiscope Pty Limited is a company associated with Mr Anthony Podesta, the Chief Executive Offi cer of the Company.
3 Chessari Holdings Pty Limited is a company associated with Mr Ross Chessari, a non-executive Director.
4 Asia Pac Technology Pty Limited is a company associated with Mr John Bennetts, a non-executive Director.

RESTRICTED SECURITIES

As at the date of this Annual Report, there are no securities in the Company subject to voluntary escrow or any other restrictions.

UNQUOTED SECURITIES

As at the date of this Annual Report, the details of unquoted securities in the Company are as follows:

Class     Number of Securities          Number of Holders

Options exercisable at $0.50 and expiring on 15 March 2008  747,717 16
Options exercisable at $1.54 and expiring on 14 December 2008  113,500 1
Options exercisable at $1.59 and expiring on 21 April 2009  70,938 1
Options exercisable at $0.50 and expiring on 15 August 2009  100,000 1

No person holds 20% or more of the class of unquoted securities noted above.

ON-MARKET BUY BACK

The Company does not have a current on-market buy-back.

FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

To further assist the market in understanding the nature of its funding arrangements and consistent with its disclosures in the prospectus dated 
4 February 2004, the Company confi rms that under the Facility Agreement between the Company and the Bank of Western Australia Limited (Bank West) dated 
24 December 2003 it is an event of default if, in Bank West’s reasonable opinion, there is a change in the identity of any of the persons who are able to control:

• the composition of the Board or other governing bodies of the Company;
• more than half of the voting rights attaching to the capital of the Company; or
•  more than half of the issued capital of the Company (excluding any part of that capital that carries no right to participate beyond a specifi ed amount 

in the distribution of the either profi t or capital), 

including the acquisition by any means by a person of a relevant interest (as defi ned in the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth)) in the securities of the Company 
that is suffi cient to allow that person either alone or jointly with others to exercise control referred to above.

The Company confi rms that the above provision applies to secondary trading of securities in the Company.

No.            Name       Number of Ordinary Shares Percentage of Ordinary Shares1
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
Directors
Ronald Pitcher (Chairman)
Anthony Podesta (Managing Director)
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Graeme McMahon
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Registered Offi ce
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Tel:  (03) 9635 0000
Fax: (03) 9635 0011

Company Auditors
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Level 2
215 Spring Street
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Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
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